
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, November 30, 2023 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….……………………………………..Joe Hoffman 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .......................................................................... Chief Deputy Recorder Jill Peppers 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of October 26, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of November 9, 2023 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
 
9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments to be Laid 

Over 



wincoil.gov | Page 2  

3. Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board 
(ILETSB) Grant Award to be Laid Over 

4. Resolution Approving Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy 
5. Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor’s Program 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection by and Between the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of Cherry Valley 

2. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection by and Between the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of New Milford 

3. Resolution Authorizing the DC Estate Winery (8877 State Line Rd, South Beloit, Il) be 
Subject to the Jurisdiction of the City of South Beloit Pursuant to a Pre-Annexation 
Agreement, District 4, to be laid over 

4. SU-01-23 A Special Use Permit to allow a Place of Worship (on a lot less than 5 acres) 
in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for the property that is commonly known as 
6730 Old River Road, Rockford, IL 61103 in Owen Township, District 5, to be laid over 

5. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Donation of Property Located at the Southeast Corner 

Intersection of Chestnut Street and South Church Street in the City of Rockford for 
Right-of-Way Purposes to the City of Rockford, IL  

3. Ordinance Adopting a Remote Work Policy to be Laid Over 
4. Resolution Awarding Off-Site Scanning Services for Document Imaging Using CIP Funds 

Cost:  $790,828.74 
5. Resolution Awarding Fuji Persona CS Compact C-Arm Machine for Coroner’s Office 

Cost:  $114,000.00 
6. Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance 
7. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Arthur J. Gallagher 

for the Property and Casualty Coverage 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Impound Vehicle Storage and Related Services 



wincoil.gov | Page 3  

3. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the Agreement for Police 
Services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

4. Resolution Accepting Award and Authorizing Execution of Service Agreements and 
Amendment #01 for the Officer Recruitment and Retention Grant Program 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
A. Resolution Awarding Service Agreements using Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 

to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance and Remedies 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ............................... Chief Deputy Recorder Jill Peppers 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, December 14, 2023 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 























CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:         Steve Schultz 

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    November 16, 2023 

Ordinance Title:      Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments 

Board Meeting Date:    November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No  Appropriation Amount:   See Attached 

If not, explain funding source:  See Attached details 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Various 

FY2023 Budget Impact: Varies by Fund 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County fiscal year ended as of September 30, 2023. Accounting 
entries are made through the end of December for revenues and expenses that relate to activity occurring 
in the prior fiscal year.  Upon review of accounts at the beginning of November, certain revenues and 
expenditures have exceeded budgeted amounts.  Details are included in the attached documentation and 
vary by fund.  

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance:    November 16, 2023 
 Lay Over: November 30, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 14, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Year End Adjustments 

 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County’s fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 and activity 

related to this time period is required to be recorded in that appropriate period per generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Certain revenues and expenses have exceeded budgeted 
amounts.  This amendment will update the budget to reflect actual activity and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 29, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-042 Year End Amendment. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



11/16/2023

Various Steve Schultz

0001 General Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

11000 41110 Auditor ‐ Salary $178,266 $0 $178,266 $3,719 $181,985

11000 43941 Auditor ‐ Dues & Memberships $920 $0 $920 $989 $1,909

11500 41110 City Election ‐ Regular Salaries $139,038 $0 $139,038 $2,188 $141,226

11500 41120 City Election ‐ Temporary Salaries $0 $0 $0 $9,930 $9,930

12503 41110 County Board ‐ Regular Salaries $170,000 $0 $170,000 $18,000 $188,000

12503 43941 County Board ‐ Cell Phone $0 $0 $0 $418 $418

12503 43310 County Board ‐ Travel $0 $0 $0 $710 $710

12503 43410 County Board ‐ Printing $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000

12503 43941 County Board ‐ Dues & Memberships $11,000 $0 $11,000 $272 $11,272

12503 44140 County Board ‐ Print Svcs $0 $0 $0 $720 $720

18000 43110 Finance ‐ Auditing $160,000 $0 $160,000 $19,725 $179,725

27000 44230 PSB ‐ Space Allocation $484,011 $0 $484,011 $68,750 $552,761

31000 44130 State's Atty ‐ Copier Chargeback $40,000 $0 $40,000 $2,200 $42,200

Revenue

$128,621

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:

SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $128,621

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:

DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

Increase budget for various expenses based on year end actuals for the General Fund.

2023‐042A

VariousDEPT. BUDGET NO.



11/16/2023

40200 Steve Schultz

0102 Marriage & Civil Union Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40200 42290 Marriage Fund ‐ Other Dept Supplies $4,000 $0 $4,000 $1,367 $5,367

Revenue

40200 39210 Marriage Fund ‐ Interest ($1) $0 ($1) (245)                         ($246)

40200 39990 Marriage Fund ‐ Other Svcs ($5,000) $0 ($5,000) (180)                         ($5,180)

$942

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available Fund Balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042B

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40200‐Marriage & Civil Union

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for various expenses based on year end actuals for the Marriage & Civil Union Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $942



11/16/2023

40700 Steve Schultz

0107 Court Automation Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40700 43190 Court Automation Fee‐Other Prof Svc $310,000 $0 $310,000 $6,821 $316,821

Revenue

40700 34120 Court Automation Fee‐Doc Filing Fee ($310,000) $0 ($310,000) ($6,821) ($316,821)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2023

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042C

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40700‐Court Automation Fee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Court Automation Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

40700 Steve Schultz

0108 Court Security Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

40800 49110 Court Security Fee‐Txfrs to Other Funds $675,000 $0 $675,000 $50,908 $725,908

Revenue

40800 34120 Court Security Fee‐Document Filing Fee ($675,000) $0 ($675,000) ($50,908) ($725,908)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in 2023

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042D

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 40800‐Court Security Fee

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Court Security Fee Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

41700 Steve Schultz

0116 Host Fee Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

41700 49110 Host Fee‐Transfer to Other Funds $1,389,050 $0 $1,389,050 $1,000,000 $2,389,050

Revenue

$0 $0 $0

$1,000,000

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042E

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41700‐Host Fee Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for FY22 transfer to highway fund that was not previously recorded.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $1,000,000



11/16/2023

42600 Steve Schultz

0126 Law Library Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

42600 41110 Law Library‐Regular Salaries $61,600 $0 $61,600 $12,584 $74,184

42600 42120 Law Library‐Book, Periodicals $70,000 $70,000 ($6,720) $63,280

Revenue

42600 34290 Law Library‐Misc Fees ($188,000) $0 ($188,000) ($5,864) ($193,864)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in FY23

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042F

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 42600‐Law Library Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on year end actuals for Law Library Fund.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

46100 Steve Schultz

0161 County Highway Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

46100 49110 Highway‐Transfer to Other Funds $0 $0 $0 $64,750 $64,750

46400 49110 MFT‐Transfer to Other Funds $200,500 $0 $200,500 ($64,750) $135,750

Revenue

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Excess revenue received in FY23

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042G

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 46100‐Highway Fund

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses based on changes implemented based on IDOT MFT audit.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

48500 / 48510 Steve Schultz

0185 Health Ins Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

48500 43150 Health Insurance ‐ Medical Expense $15,810,500 $0 $15,810,500 $575,000 $16,385,500

48510 42112 Wellness Ctr ‐ Equipment $0 $0 $0 $3,379 $3,379

48510 43175 Wellness Ctr ‐ Wellness Contract $0 $0 $0 $13,012 $13,012

Revenue

$591,391

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available fund balance

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042H

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 48500/48510 Health Ins/Wellness

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget for expenses due to increases in medical expenses.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $591,391



11/16/2023

61000 Steve Schultz

0310 City Election Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

61000 43932 City Election ‐ Other Programs $975,000 $0 $975,000 $25,000 $1,000,000

Revenue

61000 31110 City Election ‐ Real Estate Taxes ($975,000) $0 ($975,000) ($25,000) ($1,000,000)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042I

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 61000 City Election

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Increase budget due to actual EAV based calculation exceeds budget

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

61200 Steve Schultz

0312 ERAP 2

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

61200 43190 ERAP 2 ‐ Other Prof Services $0 $0 $0 $41,533 $41,533

61200 41110 ERAP 2 ‐ Regular Salaries $33,597 $0 $33,597 ($20,462) $13,135

61200 48211 ERAP 2 ‐ Health Insurance $2,000 $0 $2,000 ($1,328) $672

Revenue

61200 32110 ERAP 2 ‐ Federal Operating Grants ($136,526) $0 ($136,526) ($19,743) ($156,269)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042J

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 61200 ERAP 2

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

79000 Steve Schultz

0430 Water Fund

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

79000 41110 Water Billings ‐ Regular Salaries $19,000 $0 $19,000 ($3,965) $15,035

79000 43620 Water Billings ‐ Electricity $16,500 $0 $16,500 $2,719 $19,219

79000 46330 Water Billings ‐ Roadway $0 $0 $0 $751 $751

79000 48211 Water Billings ‐ Health Insurance $1,000 $0 $1,000 $2,776 $3,776

Revenue

79000 34342 Water Billings ‐ Service Fee ($50,000) $0 ($50,000) ($2,281) ($52,281)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042L

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 79000 Water Billings

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



11/16/2023

82100 Steve Schultz

0501 Central Services

Department 

Org Number

Object 

(Account) 

Number

Project 

Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 

Budget

Amendments 

Previously 

Approved

Revised 

Approved 

Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget after 

Approved 

Budget 

Amendment

Expenditures

82100 42390 Copiers ‐ Other Repair & Maint $105,000 $0 $105,000 $2,172 $107,172

82100 46500 Copiers ‐ Ofc Furniture & Equip $60,000 $0 $60,000 $8,210 $68,210

Revenue

82100 34116 Copiers ‐ Outside Agency Revenue $0 $0 $0 ($4,865) ($4,865)

82100 34110 Copiers ‐ General County Svcs ($262,587) $0 ($262,587) ($5,517) ($268,104)

$0

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Available current year revenue

2023

WINNEBAGO COUNTY
FINANCE  COMMITTEE

REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2023‐042M

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:

FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 82100 Copiers

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Adjust budget to reflect actual FY23 activity

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

None

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:  $0



Ordinance Executive Summary
 

Prepared By:         Steve Schultz  

Committee:    Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    November 16, 2023 

Ordinance Title:     Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards 
Board (ILETSB) Grant Award  

Board Meeting Date:    November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  No   Appropriation Amount:   $90,400 

If not, explain funding source:  Grant award 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 60200 / Various / 02064 ILETSB 

FY2024 Budget Impact: $90,400 

Background Information:  New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  
The purpose of this award is to provide financial assistance to units of local government, public institutions 
of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring and retaining law 
enforcement officers.  

Recommendation:    Finance Department recommends approval 

Contract/Agreement:   Not applicable 

Legal Review:   Not applicable 

Follow-Up:   Not applicable 



1 
 

2024 Fiscal Year Finance:    November 16, 2023 
 Lay Over: November 30, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: December 14, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
Ordinance for a Budget Amendment Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards  

Board (ILETSB) Grant Award 
 

WHEREAS, New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  
The purpose of this award is to provide financial assistance to units of local government, public 
institutions of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring and 
retaining law enforcement officers. 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024 at its September 28, 2023 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #24-002 ILETSB Grant Award 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
 
 
 



11/16/2023
Sheriff Grants Fund Steve Schultz

0302 Sheriff Grants Fund

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number

Project 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

60200 41110 02064 ILETSB Grant - Salaries $0 $0 $0 $6,400 $6,400
60200 43190 02064 ILETSB Grant - Other Prof Svcs $0 $0 $0 $42,000 $42,000
60200 43410 02064 ILETSB Grant - Printing $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000
60200 43420 02064 ILETSB Grant - Advertising $0 $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Revenue
60200 32110 02064 ILETSB Grant - State Grant $0 $0 $0 (90,400) ($90,400)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Grant award

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2024 budget:  $90,400

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

New grant awarded by the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board.  The purpose of this award is to provide financial 
assistance to units of local government, public institutions of higher education, and qualified nonprofit entities for the purpose of hiring 
and retaining law enforcement officers.

2024-002

60200 Sheriff Grants FundDEPT. BUDGET NO.

2024
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: November 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Approving Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding 

Allocation Policy 
County Code:      Not Applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? N/A     Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A    Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: Nationwide settlements continue to resolve Opioid litigation brought by states 
and local political subdivisions against pharmaceutical distributors and manufacturers. The ensuing 
lawsuits may result in settlements for Winnebago County, Illinois. This policy is set forth to define how 
Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding shall be allocated and follows the directives set forth by 
the State of Illinois, as may be amended from time to time. 

Recommendation: Administration concurs 
Contract/Agreement: Not Applicable 
Legal Review:    Yes  
Follow-Up: Not Applicable 



1 
 

            County Board Meeting: November 30, 2023  
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING WINNEBAGO COUNTY OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDING  
ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2018, the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
adopted a Resolution declaring that the unlawful distribution of prescription-controlled substances 
created a public nuisance and serious public health and safety crisis for the citizens of Winnebago 
County, Illinois initiating and authorizing outside counsel to pursue remedies; and 

 
WHEREAS, as settlements are reached to resolve opioid litigation and funding is allocated to 

the State of Illinois and local governments, including Winnebago County, Illinois, the County desires 
to enact a policy to define how said funding shall be allocated; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

has reviewed the proposed policy and after having conferred with County Administration, 
recommends its approval by the County Board.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that 

the Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy presented by County Administration 
is hereby approved, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment B.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Board Chairman and all County department heads. 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

                                                                                                     Respectfully Submitted, 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR  
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIR  
 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A



































































































 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDING 

ALLOCATION POLICY 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
Winnebago County Resolution 2018 CR 014 declared that the unlawful distribution of prescription 
controlled substances created a public nuisance and a serious public health and safety crisis for the 
citizens of Winnebago County, Illinois. It further stated the County Board has expended, is 
expending, and will continue to expend in the future, County public funds to respond to the serious 
public health and safety crisis involving opioid abuse and addiction, morbidity, and mortality 
associated with that abuse in the County of Winnebago, Illinois.  
 
Nationwide settlements continue to resolve Opioid litigation brought by states and local political 
subdivisions against pharmaceutical distributors and manufacturers. The ensuing lawsuits may 
result in settlements for Winnebago County, Illinois. This policy is set forth to define how future 
Winnebago County Opioid Settlement Funding shall be allocated. Note that prior to any potential 
disbursements: 
 

• The Finance Committee will be notified upon receipt of any settlement funds.  
• All applications will be brought forward to Finance Committee and County Board for 

discussion prior to Committee approval.  
 

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS 
Eligible applicants include Winnebago County departments whose budgets were affected and 
continue to be affected by the opioid crisis and who may have allowable expenses per Exhibit B 
[may be subject to change based on agreements and/or exhibits for each potential settlement]: 
 

• Winnebago County Administration 
• Winnebago County Coroner’s Office 
• Winnebago County Health Department 
• Winnebago County Public Defender’s Office 
• Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office / Jail 
• Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office 
• River Bluff Nursing Home  
• 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

ALLOWABLE USES / COSTS  
Funds are obligated to support opioid remediation through uses included in the list of Approved 
Abatement Programs attached as Exhibit B.  Allowable costs may be subject to change based on 
agreements and/or exhibits for each potential settlement. Allowable Costs include: 
 

• Salary 
• Fringe 
• Travel 
• Supplies 
• Up to 10 percent for direct costs associated with administering the award. 
• Indirect Costs 

 
SUB AWARDS 
• To manage administrative costs, if a sub-recipient is requested, the suggested minimum is one 

subaward per $100,000.00.  
• Funded County department is responsible for ensuring procedures are followed per the 

Winnebago County Budget Policy and Winnebago County sub-recipient monitoring 
procedures. This includes but is not limited to: 

o Developing fiscal and data reporting using approved templates.  
o Ensuring sub-recipient fiscal and data reports are complete and accurate prior to 

submission to County Administration.  
 
 
 

 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: November 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor’s Program 
County Code:      Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date: November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes  Appropriation Amount:   $42,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:  None 

Background Information: The Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created 
to provide services to the State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 
inhabitants. The funding for the Office is funded two-thirds by the State and one-third from the 
respective Counties that allocate funds. The Office provides various services to the State’s 
Attorney’s Office including filing of appellate briefs for appeals, assistance in the prosecution of 
certain drug cases, labor negotiations, and tax objections. These services are based on the 
request of the State’s Attorney. The allocated amount for the County is $42,000 and is budgeted 
each year in the State’s Attorney’s budget.  

Recommendation: Continue to fund the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Program 

Contract/Agreement: Invoice from the State for $42,000 

Legal Review:  Request for funding submitted from the State’s Attorney’s Office  

Follow-Up: N/A 



Sponsored By:  John Butitta                                                  County Board Meeting: November 30, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2023 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COUNTY CONTRIBUTION FOR STATE’S 
ATTORNEYS APPELLATE PROSECUTOR’S PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created to 
provide services to State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants; 
and 

WHEREAS, the powers and duties of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor are defined and enumerated in the “State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor’s Act,” 
725 ILCS 210/1, et seq. as amended; and 

WHEREAS,  the Illinois General Assembly appropriates monies for the ordinary and 
contingent expenses of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, one-third from 
the State’s Appellate Prosecutor’s County Fund and two-thirds from the General Revenue Fund, 
provided that such funding receives approval and support from respective Counties eligible to 
apply; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor shall administer 
the operation of the appellate offices so as to insure that all participating State’s Attorneys 
continue to have final authority in preparation, filing, and arguing of all appellate briefs and any 
trial assistance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, in regular session, this 30th day of November, 2023, does hereby support the 
continued operation of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and designates 
the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutors as its Agent to administer the operation 
of the appellate offices and process said appellate court cases for the County. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 
State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are hereby authorized to act as Assistant State’s 
Attorneys on behalf of the State’s Attorney of the County of Winnebago in the appeal of all 
cases when requested to do so by the State’s Attorney, and with the advice and consent of the 
State’s Attorney prepare, file, and argue appellate briefs for those cases; and also, as may be 



requested by the State’s Attorney, to assist in the prosecution of cases under the Illinois 
Controlled Substances Act, the Cannabis Control Act, the Drug Asset Forfeiture Procedure Act 
and the Narcotics Profit Forfeiture Act. Such attorneys are further authorized to assist the State’s 
Attorney in the State’s Attorneys duties under the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, including 
negotiations thereunder, as well as in the trial and appeal of tax objections. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor will offer Continuing Legal Education training programs to the State’s Attorneys and 
Assistant State’s Attorneys.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of the 
State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor may also assist the States Attorney of the County of 
Winnebago in the discharge of the State’s Attorneys duties in the prosecution and trial of other 
cases, and may act as Special Prosecutor if duly appointed to do so by a court having 
jurisdiction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor is duly appointed to act as Special Prosecutor in the County of Winnebago by a court 
having jurisdiction to do so, the County will provide reasonable and necessary clerical and 
administrative support on an as-needed basis. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois hereby agrees to participate in the service program of the Office of the State’s Attorneys 
Appellate Prosecutor for Fiscal Year 2024, commencing December 1, 2023 and ending 
November 30, 2024, by hereby appropriating the sum of $42,000.00 as consideration for the 
express purpose of providing a portion of the funds required for financing the operation of the 
Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and agrees to deliver the same to the Office 
of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor on request during the Fiscal Year 2024. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
State’s Attorney and to the Director of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 





 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Tuesday, November 21, 2023  
Committee: Zoning 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov     

Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing Execution Of A First Amendment To The 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement For Building Inspection By And 
Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois And The Village Of Cherry 
Valley 

County Code: Section 55 ILCS 5/1-1063 of the Illinois Counties Code 
2023-CR-088 IGA for Building Inspections with the Village of Cherry Valley 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $0 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Winnebago County Board approved a newer version (May 25, 2023) of an Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement (IGA) for the Building Services (County) with the Village of Cherry Valley 
(Village) that previously dated back to at least November 29, 1984 (85-CR-23). This IGA for 
building (construction) services, updates the nearly 40-year-old Agreement by better clarifying 
items within it. No major changes occurred; however, one minor administrative alteration is 
needed to match the contracts. The Villages’ version states, …additional services performed shall 
be billed to the nearest 1/10 hour, whereas the County’s listed as 1/4 hour. The original 
agreement listed 1/10 hour, therefore this will amend the latest County Agreement to the 
nearest 1/10 hour. The County will still retain all permit fees collected regarding this contract. 

Recommendation: 
Winnebago County Administration supports the continuation of this Agreement. It has been a 
positive relationship and provides value by the County and the Village having an interest in 
protecting the health, safety, and general welfare to the citizens. 

Contract/Agreement: 
Yes, attached. 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Updates or a report can be provided to the Zoning Committee and/or the County Board as 
requested or at the end of the fiscal year.

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by:  Jim Webster  County Board Meeting November 30, 2023 

       
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ZONING COMMITTEE 

 
2023 CR ______ 

   
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING 
INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND 

THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY 
  

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2023, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois (“Village”) entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2023-CR-088) to set forth an arrangement for building 
inspections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the language within the Agreements approved by both public bodies 

conflicted in Paragraph II (B) - County Responsibilities and Powers, regarding how the times for 
services performed shall be recorded; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Village acknowledge and mutually agree that consistent 

with past practice, the times for services performed shall be recorded to the nearest “1/10 hour”, 
and not “1/4 hour.”  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized 
to execute the First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building 
Inspection by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of Cherry Valley, in 
substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Administrator, the County Finance 
Director, County Auditor and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
        Zoning Committee 

 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

 Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 
 

 Angie Goral 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 
 

John Guevara 
 

 John Guevara 
 
 

Tim Nabors  Tim Nabors 
 
 

Dave Tassoni  Dave Tassoni 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



  EXHIBIT A 

       
  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY 
  
This FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois (“Village”) 
for building inspections. The County and the Village are collectively referred to as the “Parties” 
or individually as a “Party”. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on May 25, 2023, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Village of Cherry Valley, Illinois (“Village”) entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2023-CR-088) to set forth an arrangement for building 
inspections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the language within the Agreements approved by both public bodies 

conflicted in Paragraph II (B) - County Responsibilities and Powers, regarding how the times for 
services performed shall be recorded; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Village acknowledge and mutually agree that consistent 

with past practice, the times for services performed shall be recorded to the nearest “1/10 hour”, 
and not “1/4 hour.” 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed 
by and between the Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 
1. Paragraph II (B), COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS, of the 

Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

For additional services not performed on structures for which a valid building permit 
has been issued, the County shall present the Village with an itemized invoice on a 
quarterly basis, calculated for each hour a full-time building inspector expends in the 
performance of said service according to the County’s fee schedule.  The County shall 
record these times to the nearest 1/10 hour, along with the date and the category of 
service performed.  The County shall notify the Village in writing prior to performing 
any additional service under this section and, if requested, provide an estimate of the 
total cost which would be incurred for said additional services.   

 
Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the original 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect. 
 
 



IT WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the _____ day  
of _________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

ATTESTED BY: 

  

  JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
  DATE: _________________ 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

  

DATE: _________________   

ATTESTED BY: 
VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY, ILLINOIS 

 

  

KATHY TRIMBLE 
CLERK OF THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY 
VALLEY, ILLINOIS 

  

DATE: _________________   
  DAVID SCHROEDER 

VILLAGE PRESIDENT OF THE  
VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY, ILLINOIS 

  DATE: _________________ 
 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Tuesday, November 21, 2023  
Committee: Zoning 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov     

Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing Execution Of A First Amendment To The 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement For Building Inspection By And 
Between The County Of Winnebago, Illinois And The Village Of New Milford 

County Code: Section 55 ILCS 5/1-1063 of the Illinois Counties Code 
2023-CR-136 IGA for Building Inspections with the Village of New Milford 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted? NA Appropriation Amount:   $0 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

Background Information: 
Winnebago County Board approved a newer version (August 24, 2023) of an Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement (IGA) for the Building Services (County) with the Village of New Milford 
(Village) that previously dated back to the 1980’s. This IGA for building (construction) services, 
updates the nearly 40-year-old Agreement by better clarifying items within it. No major changes 
occurred; however, one minor administrative alteration is needed to match the contracts. The 
Villages’ version states, …additional services performed shall be billed to the nearest 1/10 hour, 
whereas the County’s listed as 1/4 hour. The original agreement listed 1/10 hour, therefore this 
will amend the latest County Agreement to the nearest 1/10 hour. The County will still retain all 
permit fees collected regarding this contract. 

Recommendation: 
Winnebago County Administration supports the continuation of this Agreement. It has been a 
positive relationship and provides value by the County and the Village having an interest in 
protecting the health, safety, and general welfare to the citizens. 

Contract/Agreement: 
Yes, attached. 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Updates or a report can be provided to the Zoning Committee and/or the County Board as 
requested or at the end of the fiscal year.

http://www.wincoil.gov/


Sponsored by:  Jim Webster  County Board Meeting November 30, 2023 

       
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ZONING COMMITTEE 

 
2023 CR ______ 

   
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING 
INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND 

THE VILLAGE OF NEW MILFORD 
  

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2023, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Village of New Milford, Illinois (“Village”) entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2023-CR-136) to set forth an arrangement for building 
inspections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the language within the Agreements approved by both public bodies 

conflicted in Paragraph II (B) - County Responsibilities and Powers, regarding how the times for 
services performed shall be recorded; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Village acknowledge and mutually agree that consistent 

with past practice, the times for services performed shall be recorded to the nearest “1/10 hour”, 
and not “1/4 hour.”  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized 
to execute the First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building 
Inspection by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and the Village of New Milford, in 
substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Administrator, the County Finance 
Director, County Auditor and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
        Zoning Committee 

 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

 Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 
 

 Angie Goral 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 
 

John Guevara 
 

 John Guevara 
 
 

Tim Nabors  Tim Nabors 
 
 

Dave Tassoni  Dave Tassoni 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



  EXHIBIT A 

       
  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND THE VILLAGE OF NEW MILFORD 
  
This FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and Village of New Milford, Illinois (“Village”) 
for building inspections. The County and the Village are collectively referred to as the “Parties” 
or individually as a “Party”. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2023, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”) and 
Village of New Milford, Illinois (“Village”) entered into an Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) (2023-CR-136) to set forth an arrangement for building 
inspections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the language within the Agreements approved by both public bodies 

conflicted in Paragraph II (B) - County Responsibilities and Powers, regarding how the times for 
services performed shall be recorded; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County and the Village acknowledge and mutually agree that consistent 

with past practice, the times for services performed shall be recorded to the nearest “1/10 hour”, 
and not “1/4 hour.” 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed 
by and between the Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 
1. Paragraph II (B), COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS, of the 

Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

For additional services not performed on structures for which a valid building permit 
has been issued, the County shall present the Village with an itemized invoice on a 
quarterly basis, calculated for each hour a full-time building inspector expends in the 
performance of said service according to the County’s fee schedule.  The County shall 
record these times to the nearest 1/10 hour, along with the date and the category of 
service performed.  The County shall notify the Village in writing prior to performing 
any additional service under this section and, if requested, provide an estimate of the 
total cost which would be incurred for said additional services.   

 
Except as modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the original 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Building Inspection shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect. 
 
 



IT WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the _____ day 
of _________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

ATTESTED BY: 

  

  JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
  DATE: _________________ 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

  

DATE: _________________   

ATTESTED BY: 
VILLAGE OF NEW MILFORD, ILLINOIS 

 

  

SHARON K. BAUMGARTNER 
CLERK OF THE VILLAGE OF NEW 
MILFORD, ILLINOIS 

  

DATE: _________________   
  TIMOTHY H. OWENS 

VILLAGE PRESIDENT OF THE  
VILLAGE OF NEW MILFORD, ILLINOIS 

  DATE: _________________ 
 









Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 November 30, 2023  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE VOTED ON: 
 
1. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING 
INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
AND THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 
 

2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING 
INSPECTION BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
AND THE VILLAGE OF NEW MILFORD 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

 
TO BE LAID OVER: 

 
3. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DC ESTATE WINERY (8877 STATE LINE RD, 

SOUTH BELOIT, IL) BE SUBJECT TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE CITY OF 
SOUTH BELOIT PURSUANT TO A PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT  
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

  
4.  SU-01-23 A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A PLACE OF WORSHIP (ON A 

LOT LESS THAN 5 ACRES) IN THE AG, AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT, 
requested by People of Praise, Inc, Property Owner, represented by Anthony J. Dal Pra, 
Attorney, for the property that is commonly known as 6730 Old River Road, Rockford, 
IL 61103 in Owen Township.        

 PIN: 07-24-352-002                                                                          C.B. District:      5 
      Lesa Rating: N/A                                      Consistent W/2030 LRMP Future Map:   N/A 

ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS (7-0) 
ZC Recommendation:  TBD 

 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Tuesday, December 12, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in 
 Room 303 of the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
 tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, December 20, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
 County Administration Building.   

 
  



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Committee Date: Thursday, November 16, 2023 
Committee: Operations & Administrative 
Prepared By: Chris Dornbush  

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department 
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: permits@rped.wincoil.gov     

Document Title:  Resolution Authorizing The Donation Of Property Located At The Southeast 
Corner Intersection Of Chestnut Street And South Church Street In The City 
Of Rockford For Right-Of-Way Purposes To The City Of Rockford, IL 

Board Meeting Date: Thursday, November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Budgeted? No            Amount Budgeted? 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source? 
City of Rockford acquiring Right-Of-Way            
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   NA 
Over or Under approved amount? NA By: $
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes:       Descriptor: 
Budget Impact?   

Background Information: 
The City of Rockford (City) is requesting the acquisition of property from Winnebago 

County on the southeast corner of Chestnut Street and Church Street for public right-of-way 
(R.O.W.) purpose. They are specifically requesting 291 square feet (S.F.) for R.O.W. purposes 
and 1,191 square feet (S.F.) for Temporary Construction Easement (294 S.F. on Chestnut Street 
& 897 S.F. on Church Street). The City has tendered an offer of $8,200 in accordance with IDOT 
requirements for a total of both acquisition and temporary construction easement, however the 
County is donating the premise for governmental collaboration, which is a common practice 
among local jurisdictions for this type of item. Winnebago County acquired the Chestnut & 
Church Parking Lot in March of 2022 (2022-CR-024, 2022-CO-029). It was formerly leased by 
Winnebago County since 2014 until the purchase in 2022.  

Recommendation:  
Administration supports intergovernmental relationships that support public interest, which this 
does both. 

Contract/Agreement: 
NA 

Legal Review:   
Yes 
Follow-Up: 
Staff can follow-up with any questions that the Committee or entire Board has.

http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:permits@rped.wincoil.gov


   COUNTY BOARD MEETING: NOVEMBER 30, 2023 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2023 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: KEITH MCDONALD 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DONATION OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER INTERSECTION OF CHESTNUT STREET AND SOUTH 

CHURCH STREET IN THE CITY OF ROCKFORD FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES 
TO THE CITY OF ROCKFORD, IL 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) is the fee simple owner of 
property located at 310 S. Church Street and described as Parcel No. 11-22-479-009 on the 
attached survey, Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockford, Illinois (City) desires to acquire the above-described 
premises for proposed Right-of-Way use (291 square feet) and a temporary construction 
easement (1,191 square feet) at the intersection of Chestnut Street and South Church Street in the 
City of Rockford, more specifically the southeast corner of said intersection; and 

WHEREAS, the City has made an offer of eight thousand two hundred dollars 
($8,200.00) for the above-described property for its Church Street & Main Street Two-Way 
Conversion project, however the property may be donated if desired by the Winnebago County 
Board; and 

WHEREAS, said property is not needed by the County, nor would this effect the parking 
lot operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, having conferred with the County Administration, has 
determined that it is in the best interests of the County to convey to the City said property.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that Parcel No. 11-22-479-009 on the attached Exhibit A, specifically located at the 
southeast corner intersection of Chestnut Street and South Church Street in the City of Rockford 
be donated to the City of Rockford, Illinois for Right-of-Way use (291 square feet) and a temporary 
construction easement (1,191 square feet). 



2 of 3 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby 
authorized and directed to, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to execute all the 
documents necessary and approved by the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office to 
effectuate the donation of said property, as shown on Exhibit A, to the City of Rockford, Illinois. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Development 
Services, County Highway Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County 
Administrator and County Auditor.   



3 of 3 

Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

Agree Disagree 

Keith McDonald, Chairman Keith McDonald, Chairman 

Valerie Hanserd Valerie Hanserd 

Paul Arena Paul Arena 

John Butitta John Butitta 

Joe Hoffman Joe Hoffman 

Jaime Salgado Jaime Salgado 

Michael Thompson Michael Thompson 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 





11-22-478-011

11-23-352-003

11-23-352-002

11-22-435-002

11-23-351-001

11-22-479-011

11-22-479-003

11
-23

-35
2-0

01

11-22-479-002

11-22-479-009

S C
hu

rch
 St

Chestnut St

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office. 1 inch = 40 feet

BMO Center

ROW: Southeast Corner of Church Street & Chestnut Street

Legend
Tax Parcels

Created by Chris Dornbush
Date: 10/19/2023

Parking Deck

Federal Courthouse







































































































Ordinance Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:    

Committee:     

Committee Date: 

Ordinance Title:    

County Code:      

Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 

Operations and Administrative Committee 

November 16, 2023

Ordinance Adopting a Remote Work Policy 

Chapter 62, Article I, Section 62-30 

Board Meeting Date: November 30, 2023

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    N/A  Appropriation Amount:   N/A 

If not, explain funding source: 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A   Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information:  Over the past three years the demand for remote work has increased. 
As a result, the proposed Remote Work Policy was created, which clarifies employee eligibility, 
expectations and guidelines. See Exhibit A. 

Recommendation:  County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources have reviewed 

the ordinance and policy presented to the Board and recommend approval.   

Contract/Agreement:  N/A 

Legal Review:    Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 

Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  November 30, 2023

ORDINANCE 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CO 

ORDINANCE ADOPTING A REMOTE WORK POLICY 

WHEREAS, with the increase in the demand for remote work in recent years, the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois (County) desires to establish a Remote Work Policy for its employees; and  

 WHEREAS, the County does not currently have a policy in place to address employee 
eligibility, expectations and guidelines for remote work; and  

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board has determined that it is in the best interests of 
the County of Winnebago to adopt the attached Remote Work Policy and incorporate it into the 
County’s Code of Ordinances.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Remote Work Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby incorporated into the 
Winnebago County Code as Chapter 62, Article I, Section 62-30. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to prepare 
and deliver a copy of this Ordinance to the County Administrator, the County Human Resources 
Director, and the County Board Office. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRMAN 

PAUL ARENA PAUL ARENA 

JOHN BUTITTA JOHN BUTITTA 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JAIME SALGADO JAIME SALGADO 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW

CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



REMOTE WORK POLICY Policy Number:   

Revision Date: 

WINNEBAGO 
 COUNTY 

Issue Date: 

Page 1 of 5 

"It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County". 

(a) PURPOSE: Winnebago County (County) designed our Remote Work Policy to make sure
remote work is mutually beneficial to our employees and the County. In doing so, the County
recognizes that not all employees will be eligible for remote work because not all jobs are
suitable for remote work. The County considers remote work to be a viable, flexible work
option only in situations where the Elected Official or Department Head determines that
both the employee and the job are well-suited to such arrangement. Remote work may be
appropriate for some employees and jobs but not for others.

Employees requesting formal long-term remote work arrangements must be employed 
with the County for a minimum of six (6) months of continuous, regular employment and 
must have a satisfactory performance record—unless the employee works in an office of an 
Elected Official—in which event it is within the discretion of the Elected Official to waive the 
six-month requirement. A determination of whether the employee may work remotely is solely 
in the discretion of the Elected Official or Department Head. Any remote work arrangement 
will be on a trial basis and may be discontinued at will and at any time by the Elected Official 
or Department Head. It is up to the Elected Official or Department Head to determine if the 
remote work arrangement is voluntary or required. Evaluation of performance during the trial 
period, if any, will include regular interaction by phone and e-mail between the employee and 
the Supervising Manager, and weekly face-to-face meetings to discuss work progress and 
problems. 

 Remote work arrangements may be occasional, temporary or permanent. Temporary 
arrangements may be approved on an as-needed basis only, with no expectation of ongoing 
continuance.  

(b) GUIDELINES FOR DETERMINATION: The County encourages Elected Officials and
requires Department Heads engage in these steps before approving remote work
arrangements:

• Employee suitability – Assess the needs and work habits of the employee: Does the
employee have the traits (e.g., self-discipline, dependability, self-motivation) customarily 
recognized as appropriate for successful remote work? 

• Job responsibilities—Assess the job responsibilities and determine if the job is
appropriate for a remote work arrangement: Will all of the job responsibilities be able to be 
fulfilled via remote work or are there job duties where physical presence in the office is either 
required or in the best interests of the office/department? 

EXHIBIT A 



 
 REMOTE WORK POLICY Policy Number:   
 
  Revision Date:  

                                WINNEBAGO 
                             COUNTY 

Issue Date:  

Page 2 of 5 

 

"It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County". 

 
 

 
 • Equipment needs and workspace design— assess the physical workspace needs and 

the appropriate location for the telework: A) Are there any cybersecurity and data privacy 
concerns? B) Will collaboration with the employee’s team become difficult? C) Does the 
employee have the necessary equipment or software? D) What are the conditions of 
employees’ home or alternative place of work (e.g., noise, internet connection).  

• Evaluation of performance—Establish clear directives to the employee concerning 
employer expectations (e.g., communication, goals, schedules, deadlines).   

 
 

(c) EMPLOYEE REQUESTING REMOTE WORK PROCEDURE: The County requires 
that when an employee seeks to work remotely the following steps be taken: 
 

 • Employee shall file a request with the Elected Official or Department Head at least 
thirty (30) days in advance of the date on which the employee desires to start remote work. 

 
 • In the event an employee experiences an unforeseen circumstance which leads to 

the request, the employee shall file their request as soon as possible.  
 
 

(d) COMPUTER EQUIPMENT & SOFTWARE 
Only County-owned and managed computers should be utilized by the employee while 
working remotely. Equipment to be used should be tested on County premises. Once 
working, it can be brought to the work location. Issues of internet connectivity are the 
responsibility of the employee, not the Department of Information Technology (IT). IT may 
assist with other issues such as remoting into the County network(s) or drive(s). The employee 
may not use County equipment for unlawful purposes or for work for other employers, nor 
may the employee allow other persons to use it. Any hardware or software purchased by the 
County remains the property of the County and will be returned to County, on request. 
Products developed while working remotely are the property of the County. Equipment 
provided by the County will be maintained by the County. The County is not responsible for 
the temporary loss of remote work days due to equipment maintenance or repair, and the 
remote worker is expected to report to the office or obtain approved leave in such a 
circumstance. The remote employee may be held liable for lost or damaged County 
equipment. Equipment no longer used by a remote employee must be returned on his or her 
next day in the office. Software used by a remote employee is subject to the same County 
restrictions on duplication and unauthorized use as software used in the office.  



 
 REMOTE WORK POLICY Policy Number:   
 
  Revision Date:  

                                WINNEBAGO 
                             COUNTY 

Issue Date:  

Page 3 of 5 

 

"It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County". 

 
 

 
(e) SECURITY OF INFORMATION: Employees may not compromise the confidentiality or 
security of County information due to remote work, remote computer access, and so on. 
Employees are responsible to be aware of and comply with the Health Insurance Portability 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) in regard to handling and storing Personal Health Information. 
The employee must comply with the policies and guidelines of proper use of information 
technology found on the County’s website and any other guidelines issued by the County in 
general. Breaches of information security, whether by accident or design, while remote work, 
must be reported promptly. 
 
 
(f) REIMBURSEMENTS AND REMOTE WORK EXPENSES: Winnebago County shall 
not be responsible for costs associated with the setup of a workspace in the employee’s home, 
such as remodeling, furniture or lighting, utilities; nor shall the County be responsible for 
costs associated with the repair or modification to the remote workplace. Remote employees 
must obtain supplies stocked at the County and will not be reimbursed if they are obtained 
elsewhere. Additional costs of an off-site office, including that of additional telephone lines, 
telephone use charges and Internet Service Provider (ISP) charges, are not covered by the 
County.  
 
 
(g) DOMESTIC CARE: During established work hours, the remote employee agrees that 
family demands shall not compete with work except in the case of an emergency. Remote 
work will not be a substitute for dependent care.  
 
 
(h) TAX LIABILITY: Any and all tax implications of remote work are entirely the 
responsibility of the remote employee. Remote workers are encouraged to seek professional 
advice in this area. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 REMOTE WORK POLICY Policy Number:   
 
  Revision Date:  

                                WINNEBAGO 
                             COUNTY 

Issue Date:  

Page 4 of 5 

 

"It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County". 

 
 

REMOTE WORK AGREEMENT 
 
 
Name of Employee:             Office or Department:    
 
Department Head or Elected Official:    Direct Supervisor:   
 
Description of workspace at remote location:       
             
 
Total work hours per week:     
 
Regular remote work hours (or hours that on-site staff know they would be able to reach the 
remote worker on a regular basis): Weekday Time Location (circle) Monday: _____ to _____ 
Home / Onsite Tuesday: _____ to _____ Home / Onsite Wednesday: _____ to _____ Home 
/ Onsite Thursday: _____ to _____ Home / Onsite Friday: _____ to _____ Home / Onsite  
County Assets to be used at remote work location (if any) (including hardware, software, etc.):
             

 
The employee acknowledges and agrees that it is the employee’s responsibility to give 

accurate and up-to-date information to the Department Head/Elected Official regarding work 
location and hours. The employee will maintain the hours of work stated in this Agreement, 
unless agreed to in advance by the Department Head/Elected Official. The employee agrees to 
notify his or her supervisor of any injury the employee sustains while at the remote work 
location when the injury occurred during the course of the employee’s regular work duties. 
 

As evidenced by my signature below as the employee, the information I have provided 
in this Remote Work Agreement is true and accurate and will be followed on a regular basis 
under the direction of my supervisor. If any information changes, it is my duty to inform my 
supervisor. I acknowledge and agree that this Remote Work Agreement may be stopped at any 
time per the direction of the Elected Official or Department Head. I also understand that the 
County may, at any time, change any or all of the conditions under which I am permitted to 
work remotely or altogether withdraw permission to work remotely. Additionally, I 
acknowledge receipt of the Winnebago County Remote Work Policy and, by signing below, I 
affirm that I have read the Winnebago County Remote Work Policy in its entirety and I agree 
to adhere to all the terms and conditions thereof.  

 
 



 
 REMOTE WORK POLICY Policy Number:   
 
  Revision Date:  

                                WINNEBAGO 
                             COUNTY 

Issue Date:  

Page 5 of 5 

 

"It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County". 

 
 

 
 
 
 
I have read and understand this Agreement, and I agree to the duties, obligations, 
responsibilities and conditions described within this document.  
 

  
             
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE       DATE 
 
 
             
ELECTED OFFICIAL/DEPARTMENT HEAD                 DATE 

 



County Board Meeting:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING OFF-SITE SCANNING SERVICES FOR DOCUMENT IMAGING

USING CIP FUNDS  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

         WHEREAS, several County of Winnebago departments need scanning services for 
boxed documents housed in the 720 Chestnut Street building; and, 

         WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Proposals received for the aforementioned 
project and recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

EXELA TECHNOLOGIES 
(HOV SERVICES INC.) 
2701 E. GRAUWYLER ROAD 
IRVING, TEXAS 75061 

(See Proposal Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Administrator is authorized to award an agreement, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, with EXELA TECHNOLOGIES (HOV SERVICES, INC.), 2701 E. GRAUWYLER 
ROAD, IRVING, TEXAS 75061. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Facilities, Purchasing 
Department, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



 
             Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



County Board Meeting:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING OFF-SITE SCANNING SERVICES FOR DOCUMENT IMAGING

USING CIP FUNDS  

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

         WHEREAS, several County of Winnebago departments need scanning services for 
boxed documents housed in the 720 Chestnut Street building; and, 

         WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Proposals received for the aforementioned 
project and recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

EXELA TECHNOLOGIES 
(HOV SERVICES INC.) 
2701 E. GRAUWYLER ROAD 
IRVING, TEXAS 75061 

(See Proposal Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Administrator is authorized to award an agreement, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, with EXELA TECHNOLOGIES (HOV SERVICES, INC.), 2701 E. GRAUWYLER 
ROAD, IRVING, TEXAS 75061. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Facilities, Purchasing 
Department, Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



 
             Respectfully Submitted, 

                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



MICROSYSTEMS, INC.
COURT RECORD & DATA MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES, INC.

SC STRATEGIC SOLUTIONS EXELA TECHNOLOGIES

VENDOR 

PROPOSAL TAB
23P-2295 OFF-SITE SCANNING SERVICES FOR DOCUMENT IMAGING

PROPOSAL OPENING - AUGUST 31, 2023 - 11:00 A.M.

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:   Purchasing Department  
Committee:    Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:     November 16, 2023 
Board Date:  November 30, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Awarding Fuji Persona CS Compact C-Arm Machine for Coroner’s 

  Office 

Was item budgeted?  Yes      Appropriation Amount:   $113,739 

If not, explain funding source:  

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 41900-46430     Descriptor: Coroner Fee Fund- Machinery and Equipment 

 

Background Information:  Digital imaging is imperative to the death investigations of infants, 
children, homicides, suicides, decomposition and water recovery cases and all suspicious deaths. 
Currently, the Coroner’s Office is contracting these services through Mercy and UW Health, 
creating wasted time, resources, wear and tear on equipment and not to mention unnecessary 
disturbance to potential evidence.  This is not only a burden to the deputies, but hospitals, their 
staff and taxpayers alike.  Many times, during an autopsy we find that the images taken are 
insufficient for the forensic pathologist to successfully locate and remove projectiles or foreign 
objects.  This in turn creates another trip to the hospital for further imaging and of course, 
another invoice from the hospital. 
The Purchasing Department went out for bid for 23B-2311 Fuji Persona CS Compact C-Arm 
Machine for Coroner’s Office at the beginning of October 2023.  There were two bids received 
with one being non-responsive due to a late submission.  The winning bid was submitted by IRad 
Sales Group. 
With the CS C-Arm X-Ray technology, the Winnebago County Coroner’s Office staff can scan a 
decedent in real time while the pathologist is there to get the precise images, he/she needs to 
successfully complete his/her investigation.  This machine will also allow us to provide digital 
imaging to surrounding counties that are already using (and paying for) our morgue space.  
Each time we “Assist an Outside County”, the revenue generated is coded and deposited into 
the county’s general fund, creating a positive outcome for all involved. 
Recommendation:  It is recommended by Jennifer Muraski, Winnebago County Coroner, that the 
County awards Bid #23B-2311 to iRad Sales Group. 

Follow-Up:   The Purchasing Department will issue a Purchase Order to iRad Sales Group. 



County Board Meeting:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING FUJI PERSONA CS COMPACT C-ARM MACHINE FOR CORONER’S OFFICE 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use.  All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

         WHEREAS, Winnebago County Coroner’s Office needs a machine to provide 
exceptional x-ray images for decedents; and, 

         WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid received for the aforementioned project and 
recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

iRAD SALES GROUP 
141 PEYERK COURT 
ROMEO, MICHIGAN 48065 

(See Bid Tab, Resolution Exhibit A) 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Coroner is authorized to award an agreement, on behalf of 
the County of Winnebago, with iRAD SALES GROUP, 141 PEYERK COURT, ROMEO, MICHIGAN 
48065. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Coroner, Purchasing Department, 
Board Office, Finance Director and County Auditor. 



             Respectfully Submitted, 
                        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR iRAD SALES GROUP

PRICE $111,289 + $2450 freight

WARRANTY Full one-year warranty covering all parts and labor

BID TAB
23B-2311 FUJI PERSONA CS COMPACT C-ARM MACHINE-CORONER'S OFFICE

BID OPENING OCTOBER 23, 2023 - 2:00 P.M.

Winnebago County Purchasing Department

404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier 

Committee:     Operations and Administration  

Committee Date: November 16, 2023  

Resolution Title:    Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance  

Board Meeting Date:  November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:      $1,431,085 

If not, explain funding source: 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  48500-43171     Budget Impact:    - $376,532 

Background Information:  Stop-loss insurance, also referred to as excess insurance, is a type of 
coverage purchased by employers that are self-insured to limit their liability in the event of large, 
unpredictable, or catastrophic health claims. 

Winnebago County purchases stop loss coverage to limit the County’s risk on the group insurance 
plan both on a specific/individual basis.  Our specific/individual deductible is $200,000. 

Recommendation:  County Administrator, Patrick Thompson, Chief Financial Officer, Steve Schultz 
and Human Resources Director, Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the Stop Loss Renewal Offer 
(Resolution Exhibit A) and recommend approval. 

Contract/Agreement:   This is a 1-year agreement with Tokio Marine HCC. 

Legal Review:  Done. 

Follow-Up:   The premium is paid monthly based on enrollment. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL FOR STOP-LOSS INSURANCE 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers a self-insured Co-Pay/POS and High 
Deductible medical plans to employees and retirees; the County purchases a stop loss insurance 
plan to reinsure the County for medical claims which exceed $200,000 on an a specific (per 
individual) basis; the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends changing to Tokio Marine HCC 
(TMHCC) for 2024; and, 

WHEREAS, TMHCC has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for 
administration of the stop loss coverage for 2024 not to exceed: 

$52.97 for Specific individual coverage per month 
$183.20 for Specific family coverage per month 

This is an -20.83% decrease from the 2023 rates. 
This is will be a savings of $376,532 from the 2023 cost. 

See Resolution Exhibit A 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with TMHCC for the stop loss coverage for the self-insured Co-
Pay/POS and HDHP medical plans for the year January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Tokio Marine HCC, 11100 Wayzata Blvd., Suite 350, 
Minnetonka, MN 55305, for administration of the stop loss coverage.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 Resolution Exhibit A  

Stop Loss Analysis – Firm Proposals 

Winnebago County 

Jeanette Rowan| October 27, 2023 

1 

©2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Current Specific Stop Loss Deductible 

$200,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

©2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



 

Current Deductible: Specific Stop Loss Marketing 
 

                                                                                                          ******** 
  Illustrative Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Firm Quote Illustrative Quote Illustrative Quote 

  Expires No Date 

Shown 

Expires No Date 

Shown 
Expires 11/03/23 Expires 11/10/23 

   

Current Initial Renewal Renewal Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5 

 
Voya Voya Voya TMHCC (24/12) 

HM Insurance 

Group (24/12) 
BCBSIL (Paid) Sun Life (24/12) UNUM (24/12) 

Specific Individual Stop Loss  

Paid in 12 Months 

and 

incurred Jan 01, 
2019 or 

after 

 

Paid in 12 Months 

and 

incurred Jan 01, 
2019 or 

after 

 

Paid in 12 Months 

and 

incurred Jan 01, 
2019 or 

after 

     

 
Contract Basis 

 
24/12 

 
24/12 

 
Paid 

 
24/12 

 
24/12 

Run-in Limit No No No No No No No No 

Contract Includes Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx 

Specific Deductible $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 

Renewal Rate Cap Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes 

No New Laser Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes 

Proposed Lasers No No No No No No No No 

Specific Annual Maximum Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Specific Lifetime Maximum Liability Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited 

Aggregating Specific Stop Loss ($) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

REINSURANCE COSTS 
       

Specific Premium         

Single ISL Rate – (491) $81.65 $87.58 $72.71 $52.97 $72.63 $149.30 $89.32 $84.42 

Family ISL Rate – (509) $217.18 $229.19 $190.25 $183.20 $202.59 $149.30 $253.13 $263.65 

Composite Rate (PEPM) $150.63 $159.66 $132.54 $119.26 $138.78 $149.30 $172.70 $175.65 

Monthly Reinsurance Total $150,635 $159,659 $132,538 $119,257 $138,780 $149,300 $172,699 $175,648 

Annual Reinsurance Total $1,807,617 $1,915,914 $1,590,454 $1,431,085 $1,665,356 $1,791,600 $2,072,391 $2,107,777 

Dollar Increase From Current N/A $108,297 -$217,163 -$376,532 -$142,262 -$16,017 $264,774 $300,160 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A 5.99% -12.01% -20.83% -7.87% -0.89% 14.65% 16.61% 

ADDITIONAL CLAIMS RISK 
       

Additional Laser Liability and Agg 

Spec 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Dollar Increase From Current N/A $108,297 -$217,163 -$376,532 -$142,262 -$16,017 $264,774 $300,160 

Percentage Increase From Current N/A 5.99% -12.01% -20.83% -7.87% -0.89% 14.65% 16.61% 

 
3 

 

3 ©2023 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 



Resolution Executive Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier 

Committee:      Operations and Administration  

Committee Date:  November 16, 2023  

Resolution Title:     RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH 

      ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER FOR THE PROPERTY AND CASUALTY COVERAGE 

Board Meeting Date:  November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?     No  Appropriation Amount: $2,223,577 

If not, explain funding source: 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400 43510     Budget Impact:    $395,754 

Background Information:  Winnebago County purchases insurance coverage to limit the County’s 
risk on the liability/casualty and property assets.  We received a 21.7% increase on the renewal for 
2023-2024, this increase is due the following reasons: 

- County Claims Activity/Development

o $5.8MM of recent property claims

o Liability claims with cumulative loss ratios exceeding 150% of the last 10 years

- Volatile Insurance Marketplace with Fewer Carriers Insuring Public Entities

- Increased construction costs (inflation)

- Civil Unrest

- Law Enforcement Activity

- Nuclear Verdicts Impacting Umbrella Premiums

- Severe Losses Stemming from Convective Storms

Of the 21.7% increase, 7.5% is due to liability premium increases largely impacted by County 
claims developing into losses in aggregate exceeding $9MM over the last 10 years.  Increased 
premiums for property insurance account for 11.3% of the increase.  This increase is directly tied 
to Winnebago property claims from the Court House Fire and the Veterans Memorial Hall 
theft/vandalism which have exceeded $5MM.  

Due to the pooling of Winnebago’s risk with other members of the CIRMA pool, the impact of the 
County’s claim activity was significantly negated. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


  2 

Recommendation:  County Administrator, Patrick Thompson, Chief Financial Officer, Steve Schultz 
and Human Resources Director, Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the Property and Casualty Renewal 
Offer (Resolution Exhibit A) and recommend approval. 
 
Contract/Agreement:   This is year 3 of a 3 year initial membership commitment with CIRMA.  
 
Legal Review:  Done. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 



County Board:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH ARTHUR J. 
GALLAGHER FOR THE PROPERTY AND CASUALTY COVERAGE 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, each year adopts a Resolution which 
authorizes acceptance of the property and casualty insurance coverage; the County’s Insurance 
Broker, has extensively reviewed the County’s options for this coverage; and, 

WHEREAS, Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. has proposed the attached rates to Winnebago County 
for the property and casualty insurance coverage from December 1, 2023 thru November 30, 2024: 

See Resolution Exhibit A – Premium Summary Recap for Details. 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Arthur J Gallagher & Co. for the property and casualty 
insurance coverage for December 1, 2023 through November 30, 2024.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., 6838 East State Street, Suite 
101, Rockford, IL 61108 for the property and casualty insurance coverage. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



 

 

    Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 





Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Sheriff’s Office/Countywide 
Committee Name: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 15, 2023 
Board Date:  November 30, 2023     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Impound Vehicle Storage and Related Services 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  Revenue Contract   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
Over or Under approved amount?    By: 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 13500-34950    Descriptor: COUNTY-IMPOUND CAR FEES 
Budget Impact? $  

Background Information: Price negotiations for Impound Vehicle Storage and Related Services 
was last performed in 2016.  Greater Rockford Auto Auction (GRAA) requested a conversation 
related to pricing, which facilitated a public Request for Proposal. The RFP was emailed to eight 
(8) vendors who may offer the services required, publicly posted on the County website, and a
Public Notice in the Rockford Register Star.  One (1) Proposal was received from GRAA.  A
committee met and evaluated the proposal (see Resolution Exhibit A), and determined the
proposed price increase to be as expected; GRAA also provided City of Rockford pricing for
review, which is the same as proposed pricing.  GRAA is the only provider of impound vehicle
storage in the area, the only vendor with the capacity to handle the volume of vehicles, and the
only vendor to meet the lot size and security needs for vehicles impounded by the WCSO. GRAA
provides extra services to the public, such as key reproduction, tire service, gas service and
battery service.  Finally, the added-value services offered to WCSO are unlimited use of
impound lot for K9 training, at no charge, and office space for officers to complete paperwork.

Recommended By:  D.C. Sean Hughes, D.C. Anthony Miceli   

Contract/Agreement Information:  WCSO would like to enter into an agreement with GRAA for 
an initial term of two (2) years, with the option to renew for an additional two-year term and 
one additional term, not to exceed five (5) years, at the sole discretion of the County based 
upon performance, negotiations of services, delivery, and costs for subsequent years.  

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing department will issue a letter of award to GREATER ROCKFORD 
AUTO AUCTION, outlining pricing from proposal. 



County Board Meeting: November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by: BRAD LINDMARK, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by: Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2023 CR 

Resolution Awarding Impound Vehicle Storage and Related Services 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office requires the storage and sale of 
impounded vehicles; and,  

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Purchasing Department accepted proposals for 
Impound Vehicle Storage and Related Services; and, 

 WHEREAS, a proposal was received from the only provider of impound vehicle storage in the 
Rockford area; and, 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposal, Resolution Exhibit A, for the aforementioned 
services and recommends entering into an agreement to provide Impound Vehicle Storage and 
Related Services as follows: 

GREATER ROCKFORD AUTO AUCTION 
5937 SANDY HOLLOW ROAD 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61109 

$45.00 STORAGE FEE FOR VEHICLES TO BE RELEASED TO OWNERS 

$75.00 STORAGE FEE CHARGED TO WINNEBAGO COUNTY FOR VEHICLES “ON HOLD” 

$90.00 RELEASE FEE (FLAT RATE; SEIZURES ONLY) 

50% OF PROCEEDS FOR VEHICLES SOLD 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that 
the Winnebago County Purchasing Department is authorized to issue, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an agreement, similar in language to Resolution Exhibit A, with GREATER ROCKFORD AUTO 
AUCTION, 5937 SANDY HOLLOW ROAD, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61109. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, County Board Office, Winnebago County Highway Department and County Auditor.       



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Resolution Exhibit A



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Rick Ciganek 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   November 15, 2023 

Board Meeting Date:     November 30, 2023 

Resolution Title:         Resolution Authorizing Execution of a First Amendment to the Agreement for 
Police Services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       No   Appropriation Amount: 168,000  

If not, explain funding source:  815 Entertainment LLC, Dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A     Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes the extension of an agreement 
for police services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford for an additional six (6) 
months. The current agreement expires on December 31, 2023. The extension will go into effect January 
1, 2024 and expire July 31, 2024, unless it is renewed in writing by the parties. The extension provides 
funding for police services for 12 hours a day, seven days a week.  

Recommendation:    Approve the agreement. 

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the first amendment. 

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2023 CR

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR POLICE 
SERVICES WITH 815 ENTERTAINMENT LLC, DBA HARD ROCK CASINO ROCKFORD 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes the extension of an 
agreement for police services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford for 
an additional six (6) months; and 

WHEREAS, the new term of the Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2024, and 
terminate automatically on July 31, 2024 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or 
before the termination date of July 31, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement regarding details of police 
services for the Hard Rock Casino and recommends approving an agreement from: 

815 Entertainment 
DBA Hardrock Casino Rockford 
610 North Bell School Road 
Rockford, Illinois 61114 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement similar in language to Resolution Exhibit A with 815 
ENTERTAINMENT, DBA HARDROCK CASINO ROCKFORD, 610 NORTH BELL SCHOOL ROAD, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61114. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy-Chief-Uniform Services 
Bureau, Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board 
Office, and County Auditor.       



 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

            
                  

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO  
AGREEMENT FOR POLICE SERVICES 

This first amendment to the Agreement for Police Services (“First Amendment”) is made and 
entered into on the date last signed by all parties hereto, as set forth by their signatures below, and is 
effective as of January 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between 815 Entertainment LLC dba Hard 
Rock Casino Rockford (“Hard Rock”), the County of Winnebago (“County”) and the Winnebago County 
Sheriff’s Office (“Sheriff”). 

WHEREAS, Hard Rock, County and Sheriff entered into a certain Agreement for Police Services 
dated February 3, 2023 (“Agreement”) pursuant to which the Sheriff shall provide law enforcement 
officers to Hard Rock as more specifically outlined in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Hard Rock, County and Sheriff desire to extend the Agreement but otherwise keep in 
place other terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree 
as follows: 

Section 1 (A) of the Agreement is hereby amended by deleting the existing paragraph 1 (A) and 
replacing it with the following: 

A. This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2024, and terminate automatically on July 31,
2024 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or before the termination date of July
31, 2024.

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not modified by the express terms of this First 
Amendment shall continue in full force and effect.  In the event of any inconsistency between the 
provision of this First Amendment and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of this First 
Amendment shall govern. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to Agreement for 
Police Services as of the Effective Date below. 

815 Entertainment LLC dba County of Winnebago 
Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

By: _______________________  By: ______________________ 

Winnebago County Sheriff 

By: _______________________ 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   November 15, 2023 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SERVICE 

AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENT #01 FOR OFFICER RECRUITMENT AND 

RETENTION GRANT PROGRAM 

County Code: Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:   November 30, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No      Amount:   $90,400.00 

If not, explain funding source:   U.S. Department of Justice 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:      Budget Impact:   $90,400.00 

Background Information:  The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes to accept an award from the 
Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board (ILETSB) to attract a larger applicant pool. The award 
will provide funding for a media campaign that includes the production of at least two recruiting videos, 
one television spot, a paid social media campaign, as well as to conduct community outreach at various 
events across Northern Illinois. The Winnebago County Sheriff will enter into multiple contractual 
agreement with providers to carry out the project.  

Recommendation:    I recommend the following Agreements: 

1) Accept Award Agreement from Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board $90,400.00
2) Multiple providers TBD $90,400.00 

Contract/Agreement: County will accept, thereby entering into the Agreement and Amendment #01 with 
the ILLINOIS LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING STANDARDS BOARD (ILETSB) and execute Agreement with 
contractual providers to fulfill objectives, all of which will follow the Winnebago County Purchasing 
Ordinance guidelines and will contain a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal has reviewed agreement with ILESTB and will review contracts prior to execution. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with agreement execution. 



County Board:  November 30, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2023 CR

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND 
AMENDMENT #01 FOR OFFICER RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION GRANT PROGRAM 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago has been awarded the Officer Recruitment and 
Retention Grant Program from the Illinois Law Enforcement Training Standards Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement from the Illinois Law 
Enforcement Training Standards Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 

61400/various/02702 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement and Amendment #01 with the ILLINOIS LAW ENFORCEMENT 
TRAINING STANDARDS BOARD, in the dollar amount of ninety thousand four hundred dollars 
and zero cents ($90,400.00) to be spent with multiple contractual providers to carry out the 
project. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the Agreement and Amendment #01, in substantially the same form as attached hereto 
as Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal 
Justice Initiatives, Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Board Office, and County Auditor.        



 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

            
                  

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: 11/15/23 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting Award and Authorizing Execution of Service 
Agreements and Amendment #01 for the Officer Recruitment and 
Retention Grant Program 

Board Meeting Date: 11/30/23 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 

Grant Period of Performance: 07/01/2023 – 06/30/2025 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, is the 10% de minimus Indirect Cost rate included in the budget?    yes    no 

Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $25,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain:

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   One (1) TBD 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract: Indirect is not allowable.

http://www.wincoil.us/


            EXHIBIT A







































































 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
GRANT AGREEMENT FOR RECRUITMENT & RETENTION 

AMENDMENT #01 

 

For additional consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the body of this Grant 

Agreement, signed by Grantee on June 30, 2023, is amended as follows: 

 

Section 1.4 Term:  The initial effective date of “07/01/22” was included in error and is 

hereby changed to “06/30/23” reflecting the actual date of execution. The termination date of 

“06/30/23” was included in error and is hereby changed to “06/30/25” as intended to allow for a 

two-year period of performance. 

 

Except as modified by this Amendment #01, all other terms and conditions of the original 

Grant Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed by 

their duly authorized representatives: 

 

 

 

Signed and entered into by: 

 

Grantee: County of Winnebago  Grantor: Illinois Law Enforcement 

      Training & Standards Board 

 

 

BY: _____________________________ BY: ______________________________ 

Joseph V. Chiarelli    Keith Calloway 

Chairman, Winnebago County Board  Executive Director 

404 Elm Street    500 S. 9th Street 

Rockford, IL 61101    Springfield, IL 62701 

 

 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

 

Steven Pingolt     

Board Fiscal Officer     

 

 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

      John Keigher 

      Board Chief Legal Counsel 



UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:    October 18, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Service Agreements Using Public Safety Sales Tax 
Alternative Funding to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance and Remedies 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  October 26, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                                                           Amount:   $ 299,349 

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   n/a, multiple                                                                          Budget Impact:   n/a 
 
Background Information:  The County proposes to provide funding to support preventative and 
rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center (RIC) and the Winnebago 
County Jail.  TOMMY MEEKS will offer mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice 
system in Winnebago County through 13-week groups; ROSECRANCE will offer court-ordered assessments 
in the jail; and REMEDIES will provide licensed substance use disorder treatment and partner abuse 
intervention programming services in the RIC. 
 
Recommendation:    I recommend the following annual service agreements: 
 
1)  Agreement with Tommy Meeks for Mentoring services @ RIC                              $  12,000 
2)  Agreement with Rosecrance for assessments and substance abuse groups @ Jail                     $  64,078                
3)  Agreement with Remedies for Substance Abuse and Partner Abuse Intervention @ RIC          $212,349 
 
Contract/Agreement: County will execute TOMMY MEEKS, ROSECRANCE, AND REMEDIES agreements 
(Resolution Exhibit A) all of which contain a 30-day out clause.  
 
Legal Review:  Legal review of agreements was completed. 
 
Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with execution of agreements.  



County Board:  October 26, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING SERVICE AGREEMENTS USING PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATIVE FUNDING TO TOMMY MEEKS, ROSECRANCE, AND REMEDIES  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois recognizes the need for continued funding 

to support alternatives to incarceration and rehabilitation programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance, Inc., and Remedies Renewing Lives have 

provided such services to individuals involved in our criminal justice system for a number of 
years; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the County desires to have Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance, and Remedies 
continue to provide services for fiscal year 2024, pursuant to the terms of the Agreements 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreements attached 
hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends executing contracts under the terms set forth 
in the Agreements.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the Agreements, 
in substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County 
Auditor.                  

 
                  
 
 
 
 
 



County Board:  October 26, 2023 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
                

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 

 Page 1 of 6 

 
 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
FOR SERVICES AS WINNEBAGO COUNTY COMMUNITY LIAISON 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this 1st day of October, 2023,  
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a unit of local government (hereinafter referred to 
as “County”), whose principal address is 404 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois, 61101, and Tommy 
Meeks, whose principal address is 438 Gershwin Lane, Machesney Park, Illinois, 61115,  
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”). County and Contractor may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide 

mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County, 
Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires to have Contractor provide these services and act as a 

liaison between the County and various groups within the community on related matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County desires Contractor to provide services described in Section One 

and reporting of accurate and timely data defined in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide these services for the County under the terms 

and conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the 
sufficiency of which both Parties hereby acknowledge, it is agreed by and between the County and 
Contractor as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 

Utilizing a curriculum as approved by the RIC staff, the services to be performed by the Contractor 
under this Agreement shall be the following: 

 
1. Facilitating four (4), 13-week Wake Up groups for individuals engaged in the justice 

system in Winnebago County at the request of the Probation Department; and 
 

2. Assisting individuals with locating and pursuing employment opportunities; and 
 

3. Representing Winnebago County on various committees and at local functions as requested 
by the County Administrator.  

 



 

 Page 2 of 6 

 
SECTION TWO 

 
PAYMENT 

 
The County shall pay Contractor on a monthly basis for the work to be performed under this 
Agreement as follows:  $1,000.00 per month for eight (8) to ten (10) hours per week.  Contractor 
shall provide the County with a monthly invoice listing all dates and hours worked.  Contractor’s 
invoice shall be paid according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq).  The County will not reimburse for mileage or expenses.   
 
 

SECTION THREE 
 

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

It is understood and agreed between the Parties that this Agreement is not intended to nor does it 
create an employment contract between the County, on the one hand, and the Contractor and any 
of Contractor’s employees, on the other hand, not does it create a joint relationship or partnership 
between the Parties hereto.  Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s employees are entitled to 
benefits that the County provides for County employees.  Contractor’s relationship to the County 
is solely and exclusively that of an independent contractor.  County may, during the term of this 
Agreement, engage other independent contractors or employees to perform the same work that 
Contractor performs hereunder. 
 

SECTION FOUR 
 

TAX AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE LIABILITY 
 

Any payments to Contractor under this Agreement are subject to any and all applicable 
withholdings.  To the extent permitted by Illinois law, Contractor covenants to save the County 
harmless from any and all liability for withholding state or federal income tax, unemployment 
compensation contributions and any other employer’s tax liability now or subsequently imposed 
on County based upon payments made by County to Contractor. 
 

SECTION FIVE 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The Parties agree to indemnify each other and their officers, directors, employees and agents, from 
and against all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, penalties, and fines, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of or relating to, directly or indirectly: 1) any 
negligent or intentional act or omission of the indemnifying Party associated with its performance  
under this Agreement, or 2) the indemnifying Party’s failure to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 

 



 

 Page 3 of 6 

 
SECTION SIX 

 
DURATION 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024.  Either Party 
may cancel this Agreement for any reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party.  
This Agreement will not be automatically renewed.     

 
SECTION SEVEN 

 
CONSULTATION AND REPORTING 

 
Each PARTY to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in the 
performance, development of programming, and the curriculum utilized. The PARTIES agree to 
hold meetings as needed to review the services provided to the 17th Judicial Circuit Court’s 
Resource Intervention Center Program (RIC). 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 
narrative on a quarterly basis as outlined in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all 
reporting, data collection, as prescribed by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and COUNTY following 
the deadlines identified below. 
 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

October - December Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports January 10th 
January - March Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September  Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports October 10th 

    Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 
 
 

SECTION EIGHT 
 

WAIVER 
 

The failure of either Party hereto at any time or times to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect the validity of this Agreement 
or any part hereof, or the right of either Party thereafter to enforce each and every provision in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 4 of 6 

 
SECTION NINE 

 
VALIDITY AND INTERPRETATION 

 
If any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement (or the application of the term, 
provision or condition to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is invalid 
or unenforceable) shall not be affected thereby, and each and every other term, provision and 
condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.  
The validity and interpretation of this contract shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. Venue for the resolution of any disputes or the 
enforcement of any rights pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 
 

SECTION TEN 
 

NOTICES 
 

All notices regarding this agreement shall be delivered to the other Party at the address set forth 
above or at such other address as may be designated by a Party in writing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Page Follows 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 5 of 6 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract on the day and year first 
above written. 
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois  Contractor 
a unit of local government 
 
 
By:  _____________________________  _____________________________ 
        Joseph V. Chiarelli                          Tommy Meeks 
        Chairman of the County Board of the     
        County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 6 of 6 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 
Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago County 
Administration. Must include number served for each service. 
 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Accept referrals for Wake Up Group to change 
thinking patterns # of referrals to group   40 

Increased understanding of history and race relations. # (13-week) groups held  4 

Increased engagement # completing 13-week program 20 

Increase job opportunities through employer 
relationships # of new partnering companies   4 

Increase job opportunities through community 
partnerships 

# of Job Fairs / community events 
attended  4 

Accept Employment-Only Referrals # Employment-Only Referrals 
Received  12 

Increase New Jobs Obtained Through Employment-
Only Referrals 

# New Employment-Only Jobs 
Obtained  10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


5 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND ROSECRANCE, INC. 

COURT-ORDERED ASSESSMENTS PROGRAM 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of October 1, 2023, by and between 
ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois-not-for profit corporation (“Rosecrance”), and the COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS (“County”). Rosecrance and County may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, the County recognizes the need for professional assistance in providing 
quality, licensed, Court-ordered substance use disorder assessments and in the Winnebago 
County Jail for men and women who are in need of such services; and 

WHEREAS, Rosecrance is a professional, licensed organization that provides substance 
use disorder assessments and treatment services to such persons; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed that the services provided to the County pursuant 
to this Agreement will be beneficial to the parties, the community, and the men and women in 
need of such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

Article I. GENERAL TERMS 

Section 1.01 Term of Agreement 

The Agreement shall commence and be binding on the Parties hereto for the period 
of October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024. 

Section 1.02 Termination 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the 
other. In the event of termination, County will provide payment to Rosecrance for all services 
rendered up to the termination date. 

Section 1.03 Confidentiality 

Each Party agrees to comply with all State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations, 
including but not limited to the Illinois Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities 
Confidentiality Act, 42 CFR Part 2, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

Page 1 of 16



(HIPAA), concerning the confidentiality of client information. 

Section 1.04 Access to Records 

Rosecrance agrees to allow the employees of the County access to the records of any 
client assessed for participation in the Court-ordered Assessments Program upon receipt of 
an appropriate consent and release of information that complies with 42 CFR Part 2, the 
Illinois Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Confidentiality Act, HIPAA, and any 
other applicable state and federal confidentiality laws. 

Section 1.05 Warrant of Authority 

Each Party warrants to the other that each has full authority to enter into this 
Agreement and perform under its terms. 

Section 1.06 Indemnity 

Rosecrance agrees to indemnify the County and its officers, directors, and employees 
from and against any and all claims, costs, and liabilities (including the fees and expenses of 
counsel) as a result of a breach of this Agreement by Rosecrance or the negligent or willful 
misconduct of Rosecrance or Rosecrance’s employees, agents, and representatives. In no 
manner shall employees of Rosecrance be construed to be employees of the County. This 
section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason. 

Section 1.07 Cooperation 

Each Party to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in 
the performance, development, and implementation of the Court-ordered Assessments 
Program. Rosecrance agrees to name a person to represent it in discussions and development 
of the program and to whom the County can forward suggestions and recommendations 
concerning the program as well as any notices under this Agreement. 

Article II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Subject to the agreed upon funding levels set forth in Exhibit B, Rosecrance agrees to provide 
the following services in this Article II. The Parties’ agree and understand that all services 
provided by Rosecrance under this Agreement shall be in compliance with all federal and state 
standards applicable to substance use disorder treatment. The services to be performed by 
Rosecrance under this Agreement shall include the following in this Article II and that of 
Exhibit A. 

Page 2 of 16



Section 2.01 Assessments 

Rosecrance agrees to provide assessments in the Winnebago County Jail for men and 
women who are referred by the County or the Court to the Court-ordered Assessments Program. 
Rosecrance will be available to provide up to twenty (20) hours of assessment services per week 
in the jail for those people referred for an assessment by Court or County staff. If the Rosecrance 
employee assigned to provide assessments in the Jail is absent from work for more than three 
business days, Rosecrance will assign another employee to provide assessments in the Jail. 

Every person who is referred for an assessment by the Court will receive a clinical 
assessment to evaluate the individual’s treatment and case management needs and to determine 
their eligibility for further treatment services. Rosecrance will provide written assessment reports 
to County employees upon request in compliance with Sections 1.03 and 1.04. The written 
assessment will contain diagnostic impression, the recommended level of substance use disorder 
treatment, and identification of any medical and psychological concerns. 

Section 2.02 Program Oversight 

Rosecrance will provide program oversight by a Program Director to oversee services and 
employees and to provide monthly supervision, weekly case staffing, scheduling and assessment 
management, and utilization reporting. 

Section 2.03 Modification upon Agreement 

Services, personnel, treatment hours, and locations are subject to change as agreed upon 
between the County and Rosecrance. 

Article III. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES PROVIDED 

Section 3.01 Budget Incorporation 

A budget agreed to by Rosecrance and the County detailing the fee schedule and 
anticipated funding amounts is hereby incorporated into this Agreement and attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. Rosecrance agrees that the total reimbursement for all services performed pursuant to 
this Agreement will not exceed the total amount reflected on the annual budget submitted and 
approved by the County. Rosecrance will invoice for actual costs not to exceed the annual 
budgeted amount. All rates set forth in Article III are subject to renegotiation between the Parties 
at any point during the Term of this Agreement, but no change in rates will take effect during the 
Term of this Agreement unless a written amendment to this Agreement reflecting this change is 
approved by the Parties. 

Page 3 of 16



 

 
Section 3.02 Compensation for Assessment Services 

 
Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.01, County agrees to pay fifty 

percent (50%) of the salary for a licensed or certified clinical assessor employed by Rosecrance 
as shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits 
at the percentage and rate as shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. This amount is 
intended to pay for non-billable services provided by the assessor. 

 

 
Section 3.03 Compensation for Program Oversight 

 
Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.03, County agrees to pay ten 

percent (10%) of the salary for the Program Director employed by Rosecrance as shown on the 
budget incorporated as Exhibit B. The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits at the percentage 
and rate shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. 

 
Section 3.05 Indirect Costs 

 
County agrees to pay Rosecrance for indirect costs in addition to payment for all services 

listed above that will compensate Rosecrance for all other direct and indirect expenses associated 
with the provision of services under this Agreement. County agrees to pay Rosecrance for its 
indirect costs at Rosecrance’s current federally approved indirect cost rate, calculated as a 
percentage of the actual monthly subtotal for services rendered during the term of this 
Agreement. Should Rosecrance’s federally approved indirect cost rate change during the Term of 
this Agreement, the parties will cooperate to seek a budget amendment. Should the budget 
amendment not be approved, Rosecrance agrees to reimbursement for its indirect costs at the 
federally approved rate in effect on the first day of the Term of this Agreement. 

 
Section 3.06 Reporting and Invoices 

 
Rosecrance will submit monthly invoices to the County in accordance with Section 3 of 

this Agreement no later than the 10th day of each month. Invoices shall be submitted in a format 
requested by the County and include supporting service documentation as requested by the 
County. Subject to Section 1.03 and 1.04, supporting documentation to be included with invoices 
includes timesheets, documentation of personnel costs, itemized lists of completed assessments 
to include at a minimum 1) name of Judge and/or Court staff person requesting the assessment, 
2) assessment date, 3) name of inmate, name of assessor, and time spent. Invoices shall be 
payable by County in accordance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq). Any amounts not timely paid will accrue interest as set forth in the Illinois Local 
Government Prompt Payment Act. 

 
 
 
 

 
Additionally, Rosecrance agrees to provide relevant data by submitting a monthly jail 

services report as well as performance metrics as outlined in Exhibit A to include summary 
Page 4 of 16



 

narrative on a quarterly basis. Rosecrance agrees to comply with all reporting, data collection 
and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by the County following the deadlines identified 
below. 

 
 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

October - December Data and Fiscal Reports January 10th 
January - March Data and Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Data and Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September Data and Fiscal Reports October 10th 
Final Close Out Data and Fiscal Reports, Closeout Questions 15 days after grant end date 

Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 
 

Article IV. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 4.01 No Third-Party Beneficiaries 
 

This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person or other third 
party other than the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
Section 4.02 Non-Solicitation 

 
During the Term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, 

neither Party shall directly solicit for employment any person who performed any work under 
this Agreement who is then in the employment of the other party. A general notice of a job 
opening or other similar general publication to fill employment openings, including on the 
internet, shall not be construed as a solicitation for the purposes of this Section, and the hiring 
of any such employees who freely responds thereto shall not be a breach of this Section. 

 
Section 4.03 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Illinois. The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection 
with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago, 
Illinois. 

 
Section 4.04 Counterparts; Signatures 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of 

which shall be considered an original for all purposes and, collectively, shall be considered to 
constitute this Agreement. The Parties further agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or 
in Portable Document Format (pdf) may be considered an original for all purposes, including, 
without limitation, the execution of this Agreement and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.05 Entire Agreement; Amendment 

 Page 5 of 16



 

This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, oral or written, and constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties respecting the subject matter of this Agreement, and 
neither Party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein. As between the 
Parties, oral statements or prior written materials which are not specifically incorporated herein 
shall not be of any force and effect. The Parties specifically acknowledge that in entering into and 
executing this Agreement, the Parties rely solely upon the representations and agreements 
contained in this Agreement and no others.  

 
Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the parties hereto, acting 

therein by their duly authorized representatives. The Winnebago County Board Chairman is 
authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation, or modification 
of this grant award, without further County Board action. 
 
Section 4.06 Notices 

 
All notices, requests and communications which are required or may be given under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 
or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested. 

 
Notices to the County shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Winnebago County 
Attn: County Administrator 
404 Elm Street 
Suite 500 
Rockford, IL 61101 

 
Notices to Rosecrance shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Rosecrance, Inc. 
Attn: David Gomel, President 
1021 North Mulford Road 
Rockford, IL 61107 
 

 
Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective upon receipt, if delivered personally, or one (1) 
day after mailing if sent by overnight carrier, or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, with 
proper postage and properly addressed. 
 
Section 4.07 Assignment 

 
This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred, without the prior, express, written 

consent of the Parties. 
 

This Agreement between Rosecrance and the County shall be effective as of the date indicated 
in the first sentence of this Agreement. 

Page 6 of 16



 

 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois not for profit 

corporation 

 
By:    

 
By:    

Name: Joseph V. Chiarelli Name: David Gomel 
Title:   Chairman of the County Board of the
    County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Title: President 

 

Page 7 of 16



                                                                                   

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK   
 

I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND 

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose 
Rosecrance has served as an industry leader in behavioral health, and has provided quality service to northern 
and central Illinois communities for over 100 years. Our standard of excellence for treatment involves a 
multidisciplinary approach to addiction treatment that draws on the expertise and experience of our medical 
and psychiatric staff, as well as licensed and certified masters prepared clinicians. Rosecrance offers a 
comprehensive spectrum of behavioral health services that include residential, outpatient and detox services 
for the treatment of substance abuse disorders as well as community based mental health services for Men, 
Women Youth and adults. Rosecrance has specialized in the treatment those involved in the criminal justice 
system since 1994, and are currently partnered with Winnebago, Boone, McHenry and Champagne counties to 
provide services to those involved with their probation departments including Drug Court, Mental Health Court, 
Youth Recovery Court, and family Recovery court. Rosecrance has also been contracted to provide residential 
and outpatient services to the Illinois Department of corrections parolees since 1999. 

 

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding 
Rosecrance has managed multiple local, state, and federal grants over our 100-year history. Currently we 
receive grants through Illinois SUPR and the State Opioid Response initiative, as well as grants through 
Winnebago, and Boone Counties for in-jail services and specialty court programs. We also receive grant 
funding through the Illinois Department of Human Services and are paneled with multiple insurance 
companies. 
 

 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental 
Health Board in 2024? 

                   Yes             No    Not Applicable 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 16



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW  
 

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds. 
Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime. 

Rosecrance proposes a continuation of the funding from the Winnebago County 1% safety tax fund for a ½ time 
substance use disorder assessor to provide assessment and treatment recommendations for those housed in 
the Winnebago County jail. The continuation of this funding will allow Rosecrance to complete a multi-
dimensional assessment tool and treatment recommendations on inmates who are court ordered for a 
substance use disorder assessment as well as those who need to be assessed upon advice of their probation 
officer, attorney or are self-referred. All diagnoses and treatment recommendations will be made in  
accordance with the criteria and standards set forth by the DSM5 and the American Society of Addiction 
Medicine (ASAM) patient placement criteria. Once assessed, treatment recommendations are provided to the 
court or to whomever referred them and are case managed upon their release to assist them in beginning 
treatment with Rosecrance or other recommended service providers. 
 
The benefit of this program is the ability to connect with those incarcerated individuals at a point where they 
are vulnerable and are most motivated for change in their lives. By initiating treatment services while they are 
incarcerated, we are able to more easily engage them at a time where they are most receptive to the idea of a 
recovery lifestyle. Upon release from jail the clients are already enrolled in Rosecrance services and can 
seamlessly transition to our wide spectrum community-based services with no delay. 
 

 
b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships. 
This program has worked closely with the Winnebago County Specialty Courts as well as the Winnebago  
County probation and pretrial, The States attorneys and public defender’s office to help their client’s gain  
strong footing in a recovery lifestyle prior to their return to the community. Rosecrance also works with the  
Illinois State Opiate Response initiative to engage those clients in jail who have an opiate or stimulant use  
disorder to inform and enroll those interested in our Medication Assisted Treatment program that allows  
them to initiate needed medication while in the jail. 
 

 

III. PROGRAM PROCESSES 

 
a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used. 
Referrals are made to the program through court orders from the 17th judicial circuit, from Winnebago  
probation officers, attorneys, Freedom Group, and through detainees submitting a request ticket to the jail.  
Once the referral is received a 1/2-time assessor, funded through the 1% contract, goes into the jail, and  
complete a multidisciplinary substance use disorder assessment according to requirements of Illinois  
SUPR 2060 licensure requirements, DSM5 and the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) patient  
placement criteria. We also complete a Rosecrance Suicide Risk assessment, using the Columbia Suicide  
Severity Rating Scale, at the time of assessment. The diagnosis and recommendations are subsequently  
reviewed by our medical director for appropriateness and approval, and shared with the courts or other  
referral sources, and are ready to begin treatment with us upon their return to the community. 

 

Page 9 of 16



 
b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific. 
This program will work with the inmate prior to treatment to assess, diagnose and make treatment 
recommendations for when they are released. This position will provide case management services that include 
placement on the residential treatment waiting list if needed, obtaining collateral information to assist in 
making the appropriate diagnosis, resolution of biomedical obstacles, and connecting with other behavioral 
health needs.  
 
This program will also be able to connect inmates with our State Opiate Response (SOR) grant to provide 
education and medication assisted therapies to those inmates with a history of opiate and stimulant abuse. We 
are able work with the courts to furlough inmates to come to Rosecrance and start an appropriate medication 
prior to their release from jail where they are at most risk of overdose. 

 
c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements. 
These assessments are completed at the request of court order, probation, or attorney referral or through 
inmate self-referral. This position is staffed by an Illinois CADC licensed clinician, with 35 years’ experience in 
the field.  The CADC licensed clinician is required by IAODAPCA to complete 40 hours of training every 2 years 
in dimensions related to the treatment of substance use disorders. This position is funded at 1/2 their salary 
through the County 1% tax. The staff roles include the completion of a substance use disorder assessment, a 
suicide risk assessment, communication of recommendations and case management. 

 
d. Describe program oversight and accountability. 
The key performance indicators (KPI) for this program are tracked weekly, monthly, and annually through 
supervision, annual evaluations, and client satisfaction surveys. Client records are regularly reviewed to ensure 
quality of service and adherence to regulatory standards. Program KPI’s include the number of assessments 
completed monthly and reported to Winnebago County quarterly. 

 
IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 
County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Assess 100% of all in custody referrals 
for Substance Abuse Treatment 

Number of assessments completed in the jail 
monthly 

400 assessments 
annually 

Connection to Medication Assisted 
Therapies 

The monthly number of those diagnosed 
with opiate and stimulant use disorder 
linked to Medication Assisted Therapies 
prior to leaving the jail. 

80% of those 
assessed with the 

appropriate 
diagnosis 

 
 

Page 10 of 16



V. CONTACT INFORMATION  

 
CONTACTS 

 
Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Jim Noe 
Title: Director of Court Services 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 
61103              
Telephone: 815-985-7161 
Email: jnoe@rosecrance.org 
Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Carlene Cardosi 
Title: Regional President, Rosecrance inc. 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 61103 
               
Telephone: 888-928-0212 
Email: ccardosi@rosecrance.org 
Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Carlene Cardosi 
Title: Regional President, Rosecrance inc. 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 61103 
 
Telephone: 888-928-0212 
Email: ccardosi@rosecrance.org 
Program Contact 
Name: Jim Noe 
Title: Director of Court Services 
Address: 2704 N. Main St. Rockford IL,. 
61103               
 
Telephone: 815-985-7167 
Email: jnoe@rosecrance.org 
Payments Sent to: 
Name: Teresa Baumgartner 
Title: VP of Finance 
Address: 1021 N. Mulford 
Rockford, IL. 61107              
 
Telephone: 815-387-5626 
Email: tbaumgartner@rosecrance.org 

 

Page 11 of 16



Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

EXHIBIT B

Page 12 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

B. Fringe Benefits—Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and for 100% time
devoted to the project.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

 TOTAL FRINGE 

 FRINGE NARRATIVE: 

Page 13 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov.

C. Travel -- Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Indicate source of Travel Policies applied, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL TRAVEL 

TRAVEL NARATIVE: 

D. Supplies

Supply Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL SUPPLIES 

Page 14 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

  SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 

E. Other Costs

Item Computation Cost 

  OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: 

           TOTAL OTHER

Page 15 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

Page 16 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE 17th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT, AND 

REMEDIES RENEWING LIVES, INC. 

The Parties to this Agreement are County of Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter “COUNTY”), the 17th 

Judicial Circuit Court (hereinafter “COURT”) and Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc., an Illinois not- 
for-profit corporation (hereinafter “REMEDIES”). COUNTY, COURT and REMEDIES may be 
referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the COURT and COUNTY recognized the need for professional assistance in 
providing quality, licensed substance use disorder treatment, partner abuse intervention 
programming services, and other related services for criminal court cases involving 
defendants/clients in need of such services; and 

WHEREAS, REMEDIES is a professional, licensed organization that provides substance use 
disorder treatment services to chemically dependent persons and is a state of Illinois Partner 
Abuse Intervention Program (PAIP) Protocol approved site to provide PAIP services; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties believe that this Agreement will be beneficial to the Court system, 
the community and the defendants/clients. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. General Terms

A. Term of Agreement
REMEDIES shall provide services to the COURT and COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement
for a term commencing on October 1, 2023 and ending on September 30, 2024.

B. Termination Upon Notice
COURT may terminate this Agreement without notice, for cause or no cause, by giving
written notice to REMEDIES. REMEDIES may terminate this Agreement at will by giving
thirty (30) days written notice to COURT and COUNTY. COUNTY may terminate this
Agreement at will by giving thirty (30) days written notice to REMEDIES and COURT.

C. Confidentiality
Each PARTY agrees to comply with all State and Federal laws, rules and regulations
regarding the confidentiality of defendants/clients identifying information. Should a
victim of domestic violence be identified through PAIP services, each PARTY agrees to
comply with all State and Federal laws, rules and regulations regarding the confidentiality
of victim/client identification including but not limited to the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) and the United States Family Violence Prevention and Services, Violence
Against Women and Victims of Crime Acts (FVPSA, VAWA and VOCA).

Page 1 of 25



D. Warrant of Authority
Each PARTY warrants to the other that each has full authority to enter into this Agreement
and to perform under its terms.

E. Indemnification
REMEDIES agrees to save and keep the COURT and COUNTY free and harmless from all
liability including but not limited to losses, damage, costs, attorney fees, expenses, causes
of action, claims or judgments resulting from claimed injury, death, damage to property
or loss of use of property of any person or legal entity arising out of or in any way
connected with the performance of work or work to be performed under this agreement.
REMEDIES shall indemnify the COURT and COUNTY for any costs, expenses, judgments,
and attorney fees paid or incurred, by or on behalf of the COURT or COUNTY, their
respective officials, agents or employees or paid for on behalf of the COURT or COUNTY,
their respective officials, agents or employees.

REMEDIES shall further save and hold harmless the COURT and COUNTY, their officials, 
agents and employees from liability or claims for any injuries to or death of REMEDIES’ 
Employees, arising out of or in any way connected with the work or work to be performed 
under this Agreement, including protection against any claim by REMEDIES for any 
payments under any workers compensation law or any expenses for any payments made 
by any workers compensation carrier on behalf REMEDIES, and REMEDIES shall indemnify 
the COURT and COUNTY for any costs, expenses, judgments and attorney fees with 
respect to the above referenced worker compensation claims incurred or paid by the 
COURT or COUNTY or paid on their behalf or on behalf of their respective officers, agents 
or employees. 

F. Consultation and Reporting
Each PARTY to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in
the performance, development of programming, and the curriculum utilized. The PARTIES
agree to name persons to represent each in discussions and to hold regular monthly
meetings to review the services provided to the COURT’s Resource Intervention Center
Program (RIC).

REMEDIES agrees to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 
narrative on a quarterly basis as outlined in Exhibits A and B. REMEDIES agrees to comply 
with all reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by the 
COURT and COUNTY following the deadlines identified below. 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

January - March Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports October 10th 
October - December Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports January 10th 

Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 

Page 2 of 25



II. Scope of Services

Pursuant to this agreement REMEDIES agrees to provide evidence-based assessment and
treatment services for defendants/clients engaged in COURT’s RIC, as appropriate for
client service needs pertaining to substance use disorders and domestic violence partner
abuse intervention programming. REMEDIES agrees to coordinate with the COURT
regarding any programmatic changes. The services to be performed by REMEDIES under
this Agreement shall include the following and that of Exhibits A and B.

A. Intake Process and Assessments
REMEDIES agrees to complete a substance use disorder treatment services intake and
assessment which includes but is not limited to diagnostic criteria and impression, past
and current mental health concerns as well as physical health, nutrition and gambling
disorder screenings.

As part of the intake process for any domestic violence PAIP referral, REMEDIES will 
incorporate the Ontario Domestic Assault Risk Assessment (ODARA), a validated intimate 
partner risk assessment that is in addition to the intake and assessment described in the 
Illinois PAIP Protocol and standards of the state of Illinois Administrative Rules- 
Administrative Code Title 89: Social Services; Chapter IV: Department of Human Services; 
Subchapter a: General Program Provision; Part 501: Partner Abuse Intervention; Section 
501.90: Educational Component (b) outlined at:  
http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/089/089005010B00900R.html. 

Substance use disorder staff complete a thorough intake with each individual that 
addresses each component of the American Society of Addiction (ASAM) Patient 
Placement Criteria. REMEDIES also utilizes the evidence-based Matrix Model of 
Outpatient Alcohol and Drug Program (Matrix Model). 

Upon assessment for both substance use disorder treatment and PAIP services, 
completion of the results will be scanned and attached to the file in the FCE case 
management system within seventy-two (72) hours. 

B. Treatment - Substance Abuse
REMEDIES agrees to administer and staff a program of substance use disorder treatment
services for defendants/clients referred by the COURT. The program of substance use
disorder treatment services will include outpatient services consisting of six (6) sessions
per week for three (3) hours each with morning and afternoon sessions for up to six (6) months or
as clinically justified utilizing the ASAM Patient Placement Criteria. Individual counseling
sessions will be provided as part of outpatient substance use disorder treatment services.

Page 3 of 25

http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/089/089005010B00900R.html


C. PAIP - Domestic Violence
REMEDIES agrees to provide up to three (3) PAIP groups per week. PAIP services will be
facilitated to participants for a minimum of twenty-six (26) weeks, meeting once per week
for two (2) hour sessions. The following schedule shall initially apply. The same may be
modified from time to time with reasonable notice provided.

Tuesdays 9:00 am-11:00 am 
Thursdays 1:15 pm-3:15 pm 
Fridays 2:00 pm-4:00 pm 

The number of participants in each group will not exceed fifteen (15) persons. The PAIP 
will incorporate an education based curriculum within PAIP services that adheres to the 
standards of the Illinois PAIP Protocol and Administrative Code cited in Section II (A). 
REMEDIES will utilize the Change Curriculum for Men, a cognitive behavior curriculum 
that is allowable for Illinois Department of Human Services approved PAIP providers. 

D. General Staffing
REMEDIES agrees to provide personnel for court appearances, client staffing, and
consulting with case managers and/or probations officers relative to defendants/clients
referred as a result of this Agreement, if requested.

REMEDIES employs one (1) FTE PAIP Coordinator and a PAIP Co-facilitator (.15 FTE) for 
each group. Two (2) substance use disorder treatment counselors are co-located at the 
RIC will be available during the hours of RIC operation. 

REMEDIES agrees to perform all services in the manner of an Illinois licensed substance 
use disorder treatment agency. REMEDIES will provide experienced professional staff 
with the training required by the Illinois Department of Human Service (IDHS), Division of 
Substance Use Prevention & Recovery (SUPR). 

REMEDIES will provide experienced professional staff with the training required by the 
Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS), Division of Family & Community Services- 
Domestic and Sexual Violence Prevention to facilitate the PAIP. REMEDIES agrees to 
follow the guidelines of the state of Illinois PAIP Protocol which dictates that direct service 
PAIP staff and supervisors must have completed the forty (40) hours domestic violence 
training outlined in the Illinois Domestic Violence Act (IDVA) and have completed an 
additional twenty (20) hours of training in abuser services. The twenty (20) hours should 
consist of formal training or conference attendance in abuser intervention and/or 
experience in facilitating partner abuse intervention groups. 

All REMEDIES supplied staff and personnel will be employees or contractual employees of 
REMEDIES. REMEDIES supplied staff will have passed a background clearance conducted 
by COURT. All REMEDIES supplied staff are preferred to minimally have a bachelor’s 
degree. The REMEDIES substance abuse staff must minimally hold a CADC. A bachelor’s 
degree is required for the REMEDIES facilitator of the PAIP group. The REMEDIES PAIP co-
facilitator is preferred to have a bachelor’s degree. 

Page 4 of 25



III. Costs and Billing for Services

REMEDIES shall be compensated in the amount not to exceed $17,695.73 per month for
those services performed by pursuant to this Agreement. The total amount payable to
REMEDIES for any and all services performed pursuant to this Agreement within a twelve
(12) month period shall not exceed $212,348.72.

REMEDIES will submit an invoice on a monthly basis. Invoices must detail services 
rendered and applicable rates as well as receipts. A budget agreed to by the COUNTY, 
COURT and REMEDIES detailing approved, allowable expenses and the cost structure of 
the same is hereby incorporated into this Agreement and is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

IV. Office Support and Payment for Services

COUNTY agrees to pay REMEDIES for services provided in accordance with the Illinois
Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1 et. seq). Payments will be made
on the basis of monthly invoices submitted by REMEDIES.

COUNTY agrees to provide REMEDIES with suitable space within the RIC, telephone and
internet connectivity, and general technology support.

V. Amendments

Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the parties hereto, acting
therein by their duly authorized representatives. The Winnebago County Board Chairman
is authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation or
modification of this grant award, without further County Board action.

VI. Entire Agreement

This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Parties and any prior discussions,
oral representations and other understanding are merged herein and made a part of
hereof including any addendums to the agreement. This Agreement shall replace and
supersede any previously signed Agreement between the Parties relative to the specific
services recited herein.

VII. Governing Law

The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the performance and interpretation of this
Agreement. Venue for the resolution of any disputes or the enforcement of any rights
pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago
County, Illinois.

Page 5 of 25



Dated: , 2023 County of Winnebago, Illinois 

By:   
Joseph V. Chiarelli, in his capacity as 
Chairman of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Dated: , 2023 The 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

By: 
John Lowry, in his capacity as 
Chief Judge of the 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

Dated: , 2023 Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc. 
An Illinois not-for-profit corporation 

By: 
Gary Halbach, in his capacity as President 
and CEO 

Page 6 of 25



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK - SUDS 
I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose
Remedies Renewing Lives (formerly PHASE/WAVE) has been in existence since 1955, incorporated in 1959, 
initially providing substance use disorder treatment services on an outpatient basis and in 1978 integrating 
domestic violence programming into the organization.  In 1982, Remedies Renewing Lives began providing 
partner abuse intervention programming (PAIP) and in 2008 mental health services were added as another 
component of the agency.  Remedies Renewing Lives mission is renewing lives of individuals affected by 
addiction, mental health issues, and domestic violence.   

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding
Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history in grants management and has been a recipient to numerous grants 
and contracts related to substance use disorder services.  For decades, Remedies Renewing Lives receives 
funding from the Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) Division of Substance Use Prevention and 
Recovery (SUPR) to provide services at our core location.  The IDHS/SUPR contracts include Substance Abuse 
Block Grants known as Global and Global-DCFS, Opioid Maintenance Therapy (OMT) and Problem Gambling. 
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder program is licensed in the State of Illinois, Medicaid certified, 
accepts most insurances and the program is Behavioral Healthcare Accredited from The Joint Commission. 
Although not supporting services held at the RIC, Remedies Renewing Lives is a recent grant recipient of funding 
from the Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board.  Additionally, Remedies Renewing Lives has held 
contracts for many years with the U.S. Probation and Pre-Trial Offices, Illinois Department of Corrections 
Southwestern Illinois and Sheridan Correctional Centers and was a partner agency with a local Illinois 
Collaboration on Youth (ICOY) grant project. 

Remedies Renewing Lives has been providing substance use disorder services at the RIC since 2008. These 
services have been generously funded by the 1% Safety Tax.  The services are delivered by individual 
appointment and/or on-going group counseling and include case management and community intervention, 
urinalysis, relapse prevention along with linkage to our agency's Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) 
whenever necessary. 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental
Health Board in 2024?

  Yes  No  Not Applicable 

Page 7 of 25



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds.
Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime.

As a state of Illinois licensed outpatient substance use disorder treatment provider, Remedies Renewing Lives 
offers comprehensive services that include individual and group counseling, case management, community 
intervention and recovery support.  All substance use disorder services provided at the RIC are with persons 
who are justice-involved and referred by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago County, Illinois.  Through 
the 1% Safety Tax, our agency employs two (2) FTE substance use disorder counselors at the RIC.  In general, 
outpatient services consist of one (1) to three (3) sessions per week for three (3) hours each for up to six (6) 
months or as clinically justified utilizing the American Society of Addiction (ASAM) Patient Placement Criteria.  
The ASAM Patient Criteria, which will be addressed again later, has six (6) core components which include 
addressing a patient's history of using substances and their experiences with withdrawal; the patient's medical 
history and current physical health; a patient's current mental well-being and health; where a patient is at in 
terms of stopping substance use; a patient's history of on-going use and/or relapse and the consequences 
thereof; and the patient's current living situation and any challenges that relate to that setting and/or their 
recovery.  It is not uncommon for persons who use or mis-use substances to have their own history of abuse 
stemming from child abuse, domestic violence, community violence and at times our community's historic 
response to those issues.  Although not an excuse for harm to others, substance use is often a coping 
mechanism and the stigma surrounding it often compounds the difficulty in obtaining and maintaining recovery. 
Moreover, when a person living with a substance use disorder is not provided options, there is risk for long-
term consequences for not only them but their children like incarceration and/or child-welfare involvement. 

To that end, Remedies Renewing Lives utilizes the ASAM Patient Placement Criteria to address the association 
between substance use and crime.  As indicated in the Illinois State Police Crime in Illinois 2020 Annual Uniform 
Crime Report, Winnebago County, Illinois had just over 600 drug related arrests in 2020 with over 1,200 drug 
related arrests in 2019 (p. 237).  While only a snapshot into the dynamics of substance use and its impact upon 
our local community, the criminal justice system is an opportunity for intervention as justice involvement can 
be an indicator of increased risk of safety for those that use, their families and the community at-large.  For 
instance, the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) has developed principles for treatment of justice-involved 
populations.  The NIDA principles acknowledge that recovery of substance use requires effective treatment 
with continued care, treatment focusing on factors that are associated with criminal behavior and treatment 
for as long as needed to help establish behavioral change (JAMA, 2009, January 14; 301(2)).  Therefore, 
intervention opportunities that occur during the stages of the criminal justice process should not be ignored. 
Opportunities for intervention include screening or referring for substance use disorder services at the time of 
arrest; utilizing diversion programs, drug court and/or community-based treatment as part of the prosecution 
process; during the sentencing phase with terms of incarceration or release conditions based on treatment; 
part of the jail or probation process through screening and substance use disorder treatment; and in the course 
of community re-entry either through probation or release ( JAMA, 2009, January 14; 301(2)).   

In terms of demographics, during the last complete fiscal year, 10/1/2021-09/30/22, patients/clients served by 
Remedies Renewing Lives identified as the following: 

Black or African American: 93 
Caucasian or White: 44 
Hispanic: 8 
Asian: 1 

Page 8 of 25



Males: 121 
Females: 25 

Number of assessments completed during the same time frame: 146 

b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships.
Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of working in tandem with our local criminal justice system.  Our 
agency routinely communicates with the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and the Winnebago County Resource 
Intervention Center to address needs and strategies to ensure we are adhering to the highest level of services. 
We also collaborate with area medical, social service and faith community providers as part of the on-going 
case management and community intervention services we provide with patients/clients receiving substance 
use disorder services through the RIC. 

III. PROGRAM PROCESSES

a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used.
As indicated earlier all referrals to substance use disorder services to the Resource Intervention Center (RIC) 
are made through the 17th Judicial Circuit Court.  Remedies Renewing Lives has two (2) substance use disorder 
treatment counselor's co-located at the RIC and are available during the hours of RIC operation.  Substance 
use disorder staff complete a thorough intake with each individual that addresses each component of the 
ASAM Patient Placement Criteria.  Our agency utilizes the evidence-based Matrix Model of Outpatient Alcohol 
and Drug Program (Matrix Model) by Obert, et al, and published by Hazelden, which concentrates on six (6) 
crucial areas: individual support, early recovery, relapse prevention, family education, social support and urine 
testing.  The Matrix Model incorporates cognitive behavioral therapy, motivational enhancement, 12-step 
facilitation and group support and is a federally recognized model by the Center for Substance Abuse 
Treatment, National Institute on Drug Abuse, Office of National Drug Control Policy and is currently being 
reviewed by the National Registry of Effective Programs and Practices. As noted earlier, Remedies Renewing 
Lives is Behavioral Healthcare Accredited from The Joint Commission, who also supports our use of the Matrix 
Model. 

b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific.
The substance use disorder treatment, counseling and case management provided by Remedies Renewing Lives 
is delivered by collaborative approach that addresses not only substance use but mental health, medical 
treatment and connection to social service programs as needed.  The ASAM Patient Placement Criteria is 
designed to be all-inclusive in that it guides staff to work collaboratively with the patient/client throughout the 
treatment process, assists in determining goals, and supports efforts to identify intensity of treatment along 
with frequency of need.  Since services are individualized, case management is based on treatment plans and 
reported needs.  Examples include assistance with health, transportation, child care, medical benefits along 
with educational, dental and vocational challenges.  Community intervention includes a focus on situational 

Page 9 of 25



crisis in addition to engagement or re-engagement with community resources like churches and schools.  As all 
participants at the RIC are justice-involved, there is a strong emphasis in programming in how to reduce 
recidivism to not only protect the community at-large but increase the well-being and safety of the individual 
patient/client and their family.  Lastly, although substance use is not the cause of using violence against an 
intimate partner, it does increase the danger for those being abused and has the potential of increasing the 
lethality risk of violence.  Therefore, cross referrals between Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder 
and partner abuse intervention programming staff at the RIC are not uncommon and is encouraged by the 
agency. 

Each counselor will facilitate substance use disorder treatment groups three (3) days a week, twice daily for 
three (3) hours each. Remedies Renewing Lives will select which days to provide the groups. Remedies staff 
offices are located on site at Adult Probation as 2 counselors assigned to this location maintain duties at Adult 
Probation site only. Groups will take place 8:45 AM – 11:45 AM and 1:15 PM – 4:15 PM. 

c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements.
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder programming at the RIC is overseen by our Vice President of 
Clinical Services who is experienced in substance use disorder treatment. Our Vice President of Clinical 
Services holds a Master’s in Human Services, Bachelor’s in Criminal Justice and is a Certified Alcohol and Drug 
Counselor/Co-Occurring Substance Use and Mental Health Disorder Professional (CADC/CODP).  Training of 
substance use disorder staff is on-going and has included topics related to under-served populations, recovery 
support, mental health needs, amongst many others. 

Position Requirements are as follows: 
Addictions Counselors 
EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATION: 

• Must either hold a Bachelor’s Degree and working towards a Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(CADC) certification or have a CADC certification and working toward a bachelor’s degree.

EXPERIENCE: 
• One-year full time experience providing substance abuse treatment

In addition, Addiction Counselor’s placement at the RIC is subject to passing a background clearance 
conducted by COURT. 

d. Describe program oversight and accountability.
To assist with program oversight and accountability, Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder staff 
meet monthly with Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center staff of the RIC to help address 
emerging needs and patient/client support.  Our Vice President of Clinical Services has weekly if not daily 
contact with substance use disorder treatment staff and visits the RIC on a monthly basis to conduct chart 
reviews to ensure patients’/clients’ needs are being met.   Groups should be open for review by Resource 
Intervention Center Management (Karen Mohr, RIC Supervisor or Jodi Gerue) to ensure RIC standards, 
policies and procedures are adhered to and to ensure fidelity of curriculum facilitation. Remedies substance 
abuse staff will meet monthly with RIC staff for provider updates. 

Page 10 of 25



IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 
County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected 

Maintain 2 employees as FTE # of employees maintained as FTE 2 

Conduct intake/assessment and provide 
substance use disorder services.  # of clients referred for assessment 200 

Conduct intake/assessment and provide 
substance use disorder services. # of persons enrolled in SUD services 150 

Facilitate SUD groups. # of SUD groups facilitated 294 

Communication with Winnebago County 
Resource Intervention Center   

# of Provider Meetings attended with 
Resource Intervention Staff 12 

Provide substance use disorder program 
oversight at the RIC. (Average 15 per 
month)  

# patient/client chart reviews complete 180 

Provide on-going supervision with 
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use 
disorder treatment staff. # of coaching with staff completed 24 

Page 11 of 25



V. CONTACT INFORMATION

CONTACTS 

Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Gary Halbach 
Title: President/CEO 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: (815) 966-1285 
Email: ghalbach@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Program Contact 
Name: Laurie Graciana 
Title: Vice President of Clinical Services 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: 815-962-0871 
Email: lgraciana@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Payments Sent to: 
Name: Meg Jagielski 
Title: Vice President of Finance 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: 815-966-1287 ext. 425 
Email: mjagielski@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Page 12 of 25



SCOPE OF WORK – PAIP 

I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose

Remedies Renewing Lives (formerly PHASE/WAVE) has been in existence since 1955, incorporated in 1959, 
initially providing substance use disorder treatment services on an outpatient basis and in 1978 integrating 
domestic violence programming into the organization.  In 1982, Remedies Renewing Lives began providing 
partner abuse intervention programming (PAIP) and in 2008 mental health services were added as another 
component of the agency.  Remedies Renewing Lives mission is renewing lives of individuals affected by 
addiction, mental health issues, and domestic violence.   

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding

Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of grants management and has been a recipient to numerous grants 
related to victim/survivor services.  Our awards include the Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) 
Domestic Violence Prevention and Intervention (DVP&I) grant which we have received for decades, IDHS State 
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding which we have received for over a decade, Illinois Coalition Against 
Domestic Violence (ICADV) Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) and Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) funding 
which we have also received for several decades, Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority (ICJIA) VOCA 
Transitional Housing funding since 2018, ICJIA VOCA Multi-Victimization since 2020, Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) grant for over a decade and have been sub-recipients to Winnebago County, 
Illinois grants from the U.S. Department of Justice, Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) Domestic Violence 
Homicide Prevention Initiative, Improving Criminal Justice Response as well as Justice for Families projects.  
Most recently, we became a sub-recipient to Prairie State Legal Services OVW Legal Assistance for Victims grant 
and we OVW for additional transitional housing services. Additionally, the agency has a history in receiving local 
foundation grants from organizations such as the Community Foundation of Northern Illinois, The Kjellstrom 
Foundation and The Mill Foundation. We are also a receipient of Winnebago County Community Mental Health 
Board funding to support therapy and advocacy services for survivors of domestic violence.  Specific to our PAIP 
services, we have been awarded a grant from IDHS to increase our PAIP services beyond the RIC so that we can 
serve a greater number of persons in the community with an emphasis on serving those parents who are both 
justice and child-welfare involved as well as expand community based services into Boone County.  Our DHS 
PAIP programming is facilitated at 215 Easton Parkway, Rockford, IL 61108 and utilizes the curriculum outlined 
in this proposal. We hope to continue expansion by adding a group in Boone County with location yet to be 
determined when feasible. DHS PAIP funding does not support services at the RIC. 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental

Health Board in 2024?

  Yes  No  Not Applicable 

EXHIBIT B

Page 13 of 25



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds.

Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime.

Remedies Renewing Lives partner abuse intervention program services are specific to serving men who use 
violence against their intimate partner in heterosexual relationships.  Participants are ordered by the 17th 
Judicial Circuit Court as part of their sentencing for domestic violence related crimes.  Program participants 
must attend at least 26 weeks of group programming and actively participate and acknowledge their abusive 
behavior against their intimate partner.  Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services are grounded in the concepts 
of the Duluth Model which emphasize that intimate partner violence is a pattern of coercive control and a belief 
of entitlement by the person who uses violence, offers change opportunities through educational groups for 
those who are justice involved and/or seeking change on their own, and supports a community-wide response 
to increasing victim/survivor safety (www.theduluthmodel.org/).  Although explained further below, our 
agency utilizes a curriculum known as the Change Curriculum for Men (Change), which was developed by 
Cognition Works, a multi-service organization located in Champaign, Illinois.  The Change curriculum is 
specifically designed to focus on “prevention, intervention and change of irresponsible behavior” with persons 
who use violence against their intimate partner (Cognition Works, Change Curriculum for Men, Introduction, p. 
1).  The curriculum utilizes the process of opposition and solutions during group format by facilitators that 
includes role playing and homework.   

While the Change curriculum has many more components than what can be provided for space in this 
application, the most important point is how we connect the curriculum in our quest to improve safety in the 
lives of victims/survivors thereby helping to reduce crimes related to domestic violence in our community.  It 
should not be forgotten the context of which survivors are living is a state of fear and trepidation based on 
threats and/or use of violence to maintain continuous control.  Survivors often put themselves in harm’s way 
to deflect violence against their children, work multiple jobs to avoid eviction or the shut off of utilities, relocate 
their families to unknown places so that they no longer have to live in fear, participate in the civil and criminal 
justice processes which can range anywhere from being a petitioner to an emergency order of protection or as 
a parent involved in abuse and neglect court. To that end, the Change curriculum speaks to these needs by 
demonstrating that patterns of abusive behavior are on a continuum which can increase in severity or impact 
over time.  It allows co-facilitators to address power and control tactics by people who use violence that address 
all the pieces of the Power and Control Wheel that is so often identified by the victims/survivors Remedies 
Renewing Lives serves.  For instance, when thinking about the MTP Control Through Power, co-facilitators can 
address circumstances in which the offender may use coercion and threats like making or carrying out threats 
to control their partner, using intimidation through looks or gestures and/or controlling what the survivor does 
or whom they seek or talk to.  Likewise, the MTP of Specialness speaks to the entitlement piece by people who 
use violence.  Treating the survivor like a servant, making all the big decisions, not allowing the survivor to work, 
or giving the survivor an allowance are all examples of male privilege and a maladaptive thinking pattern.  Using 
the Choice curriculum over the span of 26 weeks offers many opportunities for PAIP staff to address the change 
process, accountability, past patterns, irresponsible excitement, expectations, highlighting the moral and legal 
consequences of intimate partner violence. 

With the 1% Safety Tax funding, Remedies Renewing Lives employs one (1) FTE PAIP Coordinator who 
completes an intake and assessment of need with each offender referred by the courts, co-facilitates three (3) 
weekly groups, checks-in with each offender at the 10-to-12-week group-mark and completes a final interview 
with each offender prior to the formal conclusion of PAIP services.  The funding from the 1% Safety Tax also 
supports a PAIP Manager (.1875 FTE). PAIP groups are facilitated at the RIC on the following schedule: 

Page 14 of 25



Tuesdays from 9AM to 11:00 AM 
Thursdays from 1:30 PM to 3:30 PM 
Fridays from 2:00 PM to 4:00 PM. 

PAIP intakes and assessments completed by the PAIP Coordinator are conducted during business hours with 
information uploaded into FCE accordingly and on-going contact with the Winnebago County Adult Probation 
Department.   

Demographics for FY22 (7/1/21-6/30/22) 

Caucasian or White: 54 
Black or African American: 93 
Hispanic: 6 
Bi-Racial: 3 
Unknown: 4 
Ages 18-29: 50 
Ages 30-39: 51 
Ages 40-49: 27 
Ages 50-59 14 
Ages 60-69: 12 
Ages 70+: 0 

Demographics for FY23  (7/1/22 – 6/30/23) 

• Caucasian or White: 33

• Black or African American: 75

• Hispanic: 2

• Bi-Racial: 4

• Unknown: 6

• Ages 18-29: 40

• Ages 30-39: 49

• Ages 40-49: 15

• Ages 50-59:  9

• Ages 60-69: 7

• Ages 70+:    0

b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships.

Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of working in partnerships.  We meet bi-monthly with the 17th 
Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago County, Illinois, Winnebago County Adult Probation Department Domestic 
Violence Unit and other PAIP providers to ensure all agencies are adhering to court and Protocol standards.  
Remedies Renewing Lives also meets separately with the Winnebago County Adult Probation Department 
Domestic Violence Unit to talk about specific needs and strategies to ensure we are adhering to the highest 
level of services 

Page 15 of 25



III. PROGRAM PROCESSES

a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used.

Upon receipt of a referral from Winnebago County Adult Probation, Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP 
Coordinator schedules a screening/assessment appointment with the offender which is held in-person, on-site 
at the RIC and in the PAIP Coordinator’s office.  As part of the overall assessment, a Remedies Renewing Lives 
PAIP intake is conducted. The intake form includes contact information, demographics, employment, income 
or benefits; highest education level and military status or experience; current marital status, current intimate 
relationship status and if the intimate partner is aware of the order to PAIP; contact information for the victim 
of intimate partner violence, status of relationship with the victim, whether or not the parties were living 
together at the time of arrest or conviction; specifics of the probation order regarding contact with the victim; 
order of protection history; arrest and conviction history for domestic violence related crimes and non-
domestic violence related crimes; number of times the offender has used violence without any law 
enforcement contact; information specific to children between the offender and victim and if the offender has 
children with other intimate partners; substance use and alcohol use history including if it was a component 
to the conviction or previous acts of violence; history of threats of death by suicide, access to weapons, history 
of counseling including any mental health concerns or prescription use; previous use of PAIP services at 
Remedies Renewing Lives or other provider; current and historical child welfare involvement; and use of 
violence against animals or pets.  The intake form also includes questions specific to if the offender is afraid of 
their victim themselves and if they think the victim is afraid of them.  It is not very often that an offender is not 
screened in for PAIP services.  Exceptions to that may be if the offender is in a non-heterosexual relationship 
with their victim or if the offender has been identified as a victim of domestic violence themselves.  Since the 
use of intimate partner violence is a gender-based issue and because Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services 
are specific to men, it is rare to encounter a victim of domestic violence program however when it does occur 
the PAIP Coordinator refers the victim to our agency’s survivor services.  It should be noted that our domestic 
violence victim services never deny someone solely based on gender nor sexual orientation, race, national 
origin, and familial status, disability, and legal status, number of children, age or religion.   

In addition to completing the intake form, Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Coordinator also completes the 
Ontario Domestic Assault Risk Assessment (ODARA).   Although not intended to measure an individual victim’s 
safety, the ODARA can assist in identifying risks of future violence against an intimate partner, risk of re-arrest 
and likelihood to re-appear in court.  To complete the ODARA, our PAIP Coordinator gathers information from 
the offender during the intake process, the offender’s identified probation officer and what has been uploaded 
into Winnebago County’s court record data base system known as Full Court Enterprise (FCE).  Depending upon 
time of inquiry, the PAIP Coordinator can locate the offender’s criminal history along with the most recent 
arresting incident probable cause statement and sometimes the victim’s statement to law enforcement.  Upon 
gathering as much information as possible, the PAIP Coordinator scores the ODARA responses and uploads the 
document into FCE that includes a specific dropdown menu for ODARA score.  The score then helps guide the 
probation officer and the PAIP Coordinator in determining future risk of harm by the offender to their intimate 
partner relationships and likelihood of appearing in court.   
Besides completing the intake and ODARA, the Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Coordinator also addresses 
confidentiality with the offender.  The obligation by providers to protect confidential information of PAIP 
participants is under the Illinois Administrative Code for Mental Health and Mental Health and Developmental 
Disabilities Confidentiality Act.  As part of the Illinois Protocol Partner Abuse Intervention Program services, at 
the time of program initiation PAIP participants are required to complete a written release of information to: 
relative criminal justice and court authorities; mental health agencies; victims/survivors of abuse; any persons 
or agencies that would need to receive compliance or threats of violence by the offender; and/or any agencies 

Page 16 of 25



that may plan to assist with intervention for non-compliance or threats of violence by the offender.  As a result, 
the PAIP Coordinator completes a release of information specific to the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of 
Winnebago County, Illinois, and Winnebago County Adult Probation along with a release of information that 
allows the PAIP Coordinator to contact the victim(s) specific to the arrest related referral and current intimate 
partner of the offender.  Lastly, the PAIP Coordinator reviews the Contract for Participation in services.  In turn, 
the offender is informed of the expectations for services which include weekly attendance and attendance of 
at least 26 groups for program completion; meeting individually with the PAIP Coordinator after attendance of 
10-12 groups and upon an opening to PAIP services; understanding that all attendance or non-attendance will 
be recorded and reported to the offender’s probation officer and court; expectation to remain alcohol and/or 
substance free during services and understanding that if it is suspected of being under the influence of any 
substance the offender will be asked to leave the group receiving no credit; obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation if referred by the PAIP Coordinator; understanding that if late to group the offender will not be 
allowed to participate and will be marked as absent; only 3 absences are allowed and at the fourth (4th) missed 
group the participant will be referred back to their probation officer; requirement to abstain from violence; 
agreement to cooperate with program expectations and norms; and that at its core, our PAIP program is about 
taking accountability for the violence perpetrated against an intimate partner. 

b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific.

As required by the Illinois Protocol for Partner Abuse Intervention Programs, core components of PAIP 
programming include that programs ensure the safety and rights of adult and child victims of domestic 
violence, work to reduce domestic violence through effective intervention, ensure that people who use 
violence against their intimate partner are held accountable and responsible for their behavior and to ensure 
persons who use violence against their intimate partner receive services that are effective.  As a result, 
Remedies Renewing Lives utilizes a curriculum known as the Change Curriculum for Men (Change), which was 
developed by Cognition Works, a multi-service organization located in Champaign, Illinois.  As required by the 
Protocol, the Change curriculum is approved to be used for the purposes of providing partner abuse 
intervention program services by IDHS.  The Change curriculum is specifically designed to focus on 
“prevention, intervention and change of irresponsible behavior” with persons who use violence against their 
intimate partner (Cognition Works, Change Curriculum for Men, Introduction, p. 1).  The curriculum utilizes 
the process of opposition and solutions during group format by facilitators that includes role playing and 
homework.  Maladaptive Thinking Patters (MTP’s) are a core component of the curriculum and fall in line with 
our agency’s philosophy that domestic violence is connected to a belief system centered around entitlement, 
often based on a view that one partner is allowed greater freedom than another.  The MTP’s that are 
routinely referenced within the 26-week group curriculum are victim script in which the person who uses 
violence consistently blames others for their circumstance; unrealistic self-image in which the person who 
uses violence views themselves as responsible despite actions; closed thinking in which the person who uses 
violence is unwilling to listen to share information or to be self-critical, goes on assumptions and lies by 
omission as opposed to outright; sense of entitlement that extends to persons, places and things and often 
includes intense jealousy; compartmentalized thinking where what happens before does not count or not 
impact the future with little sense that behavior has consequences; inappropriate expectations about life that 
lead to boredom, unwillingness to appreciate daily effort and/or has unreasonable fears; control through 
power in which the person who uses violence expects to be able to control situations and other individuals, 
uses manipulation and intimidation to achieve their goals including using sex for power and control rather 
than intimacy; and specialness in which the person has a sense of being superior or unique where they are 
living in a natural state and whatever rules may exist are for others.  In addition to the MTP’s, the Change 
curriculum includes Tactics to Avoid Being Accountable.  The different tactics include putting others on the 
defense such as when they attack competency, bring up irrelevant issues, minimize the situation and pick at 
details; control information like agreeing with no intention of following through, being intentionally vague, 
saying whatever will satisfy the moment or using silence; and controlling interactions such as listening 

Page 17 of 25



selectively and hearing only what is self-serving, insisting they forgot and/or focusing on being mis-
understood.   

The Change curriculum also has a heavy emphasis on choice language.  The Change curriculum values keeping 

responsibility on the irresponsible person, cutting through the denial system, and recognizing the power over 

their own lives to change. The curriculum focuses on cognitive restructuring.  PAIP co-facilitators model choice 

language during group by using phrases such as “you may choose to” or “your choices are”, etc.   

c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements.

Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP program at the RIC is led by a Coordinator who is supervised by our PAIP 
Manager. Remedies staff offices are located on site at Adult Probation as are counselors assigned to this 
location who maintain duties at Adult Probation site only. The PAIP Manager has received the 40-hour 
domestic violence training and the 20-hour partner abuse intervention training. The PAIP Coordinator has also 
received the 40-hour domestic violence training described within the Illinois Domestic Violence Act and the 
required 20-hour partner abuse intervention training. All trainings were received through IDCVP Board 
approved training sites. Any part-time co-facilitators for Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services that may fill 
in at the RIC also meet these same training qualifications. Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Manager oversees 
PAIP services at the RIC and provides supervision of the PAIP Coordinator and co-facilitators. The Vice 
President of Domestic Violence Services, who oversees and supervises the PAIP Manager, holds a Bachelors of 
Sociology and a Masters of Public Administration and has over 20 years of experience in domestic violence 
programming including direct service with adults and child survivors and continues to hold management roles 
with Remedies Renewing Lives. 

Qualifications for PAIP positions are as follows: 
PAIP Coordinator:  
EDUCATION: 

• Bachelor’s Degree required.
EXPERIENCE: 

• Demonstrated skills in individual, group case management.
CERTIFICATE/LICENSE: 

• Completion of the 40-hour domestic violence training as required by the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) from an Illinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional (CDVP) approved training site

• Completion of 20-hour partner abuse intervention program training from an Illinois Certified Partner
Abuse Intervention Prevention (CPAIP) approved training site.

PAIP Co-Facilitator: 
EDUCATION: 

• Bachelor’s Degree preferred.
EXPERIENCE: 

• Demonstrated skills in case management and or group facilitation preferred
CERTIFICATE/LICENSE: 

• Completion of the 40-hour domestic violence training as required by the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) from an Illinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional (ICDVP) approved training site.
This training will be provided by Remedies Renewing Lives at the start of employment if not yet
completed.

Page 18 of 25



• Completion of the 20-hour partner abuse intervention program training from an Illinois Certified
Partner Abuse Intervention Program training site will be required after starting employment, if not yet
completed.

d. Describe program oversight and accountability.

To provide program oversight and accountability, Remedies Renewing Lives meets monthly with Winnebago 
County Adult Probation Department staff to help address emerging needs and client support. Our PAIP Manager 
oversees all PAIP services held at the RIC and provides weekly supervision of the PAIP Coordinator and PAIP Co-
facilitators. The Vice President of Domestic Violence Services also observes PAIP groups periodically to ensure 
agency standards are adhered to and provides supervision to the PAIP Manager Groups should be open for 
review by Resource Intervention Center Management (Karen Mohr, RIC Supervisor or Jodi Gerue) to ensure RIC 
standards, policies and procedures are adhered to and to ensure fidelity of curriculum facilitation. Observation 
may be quarterly. Should follow up be required, a follow up observation visit may take place within 45 days to 
ensure the issue has been addressed.   

IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 

will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 

County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected 

Maintain 1.1875 employees as FTE. # of employees maintained as FTE 1.1875 

Conduct intake/assessment, mid-point 
and final evaluation with persons 
referred by Courts 

# persons enrolled in PAIP 150 

Facilitate weekly PAIP groups. # PAIP groups facilitated 156 

Communication with Winnebago 
County, Illinois Adult Probation 
Department. 

# meetings with Winnebago County Adult 
Probation 

12 

Supervision with PAIP staff. # of coaching with staff completed 50 

Page 19 of 25



V. CONTACT INFORMATION  

 

 

CONTACTS 
 

Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Gary Halbach 
Title: President/CEO 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: (815) 966-1285 
Email: ghalbach@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Program Contact 
Name: Laurie Graciana 
Title: Vice President of Clinical Services 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: 815-962-0871 
Email: lgraciana@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Payments Sent to: 
Name: Meg Jagielski 
Title: Vice President of Finance 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: 815-966-1287 ext. 425 
Email: mjagielski@remediesrenewinglives.org 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 25



Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

EXHIBIT C

Page 21 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

B. Fringe Benefits—Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and for 100% time
devoted to the project.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

 TOTAL FRINGE 

 FRINGE NARRATIVE: 

Page 22 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov.

C. Travel -- Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Indicate source of Travel Policies applied, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL TRAVEL 

TRAVEL NARATIVE: 

D. Supplies

Supply Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL SUPPLIES 

Page 23 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

  SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 

E. Other Costs

Item Computation Cost 

  OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: 

           TOTAL OTHER

Page 24 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

Page 25 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: November 30, 2023 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission a letter regarding the Byron Station-Integrated Inspection Report 
05000454/2023003 and 05000455/2023003 and Exercise of Enforcement Discretion. 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendments for Year End Adjustments
	Ordinance for a Budget Amendment IL Law Enforcement Training Standards Board (ILETSB) Grant Award
	Resolution Approving Winn. Cty. Opioid Settlement Funding Allocation Policy
	Resolution Authorizing Cty. Contribution for State's Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor's Program
	Zoning Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to Intergovernmental Cooperation Agrmt for Bldg. Inspection by & between Cty. of Winn., IL & Village of Cherry Valley
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to Intergovernmental Cooperation Agrmt for Bldg. Inspection by & between Cty. of Winn., IL & Village of New Milford
	Resolution Authorizing DC Estate Winery be Subject to Jurisdiction of City of South Beloit pursuant to Pre-Annexation Agreement
	Committee Report
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Donation of Property at SE Corner Intersection of Chestnut & South Church in City of Rkfd. for Right-of-Way Purposes
	Ordinance Adopting a Remote Work Policy
	Resolution Awarding Off-Site Scanning Services for Document Imaging Using CIP Funds
	Resolution Awarding Fuji Persona CS Compact C-Arm Machine for Coroner's Office
	Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agrmt w/Arthur J. Gallagher for Property & Casualty Coverage
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Awarding Impound Vehicle Storage & Related Services
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of First Amendment to Agrmt for Police Services w/815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford
	Resolution Accepting Award & Authorizing Execution of Service Agrmts & Amendment #01 for Officer Recruitment & Retention Grant Program
	Unfinished Business
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Awarding Service Agrmts using PSST Alternative Funding to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance & Remedies
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment

	NamePositionRow1: Tommy Meeks
	ComputationRow1: 1000 (rate) x 12 (mo)
	CostRow1: 12000.00
	NamePositionRow2: 
	ComputationRow2: 
	CostRow2: 
	NamePositionRow3: 
	ComputationRow3: 
	CostRow3: 
	NamePositionRow4: 
	ComputationRow4: 
	CostRow4: 
	NamePositionRow5: 
	ComputationRow5: 
	CostRow5: 
	NamePositionRow6: 
	ComputationRow6: 
	CostRow6: 
	CostTOTAL SALARY: 12000
	SALARY NARRATIVE: Tommy Meeks works every Thursday from 8 am to 5 pm at the Resource Intervention Center, in the field seeking employers, or meeting with potential employers. He also meets with clients and employers on his off days via telephone, transportation, to give advise, or provide other support. 1,000 (mo) x 12 (mos) = $12,000.00 total cost
	AmountA Personnel: 12000
	AmountB Fringe Benefits: 0
	AmountC Travel: 0
	AmountD Supplies: 0
	AmountE Other Costs: 0
	AmountTOTAL PROJECT COSTS: 12000
	NamePositionRow1_2: James N / Program Director
	ComputationRow1_2: 10,057.32*.28
	CostRow1_2: 2816.05
	NamePositionRow2_2: Johnny C / PT Assessor
	ComputationRow2_2: 29,697.41*.28
	CostRow2_2: 8315.27
	NamePositionRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_2: 
	CostRow3_2: 
	NamePositionRow4_2: 
	ComputationRow4_2: 
	CostRow4_2: 
	NamePositionRow5_2: 
	ComputationRow5_2: 
	CostRow5_2: 
	NamePositionRow6_2: 
	ComputationRow6_2: 
	CostRow6_2: 
	NamePositionRow7: 
	ComputationRow7: 
	CostRow7: 
	NamePositionRow8: 
	ComputationRow8: 
	CostRow8: 
	NamePositionRow9: 
	ComputationRow9: 
	CostRow9: 
	NamePositionRow10: 
	ComputationRow10: 
	CostRow10: 
	NamePositionRow11: 
	ComputationRow11: 
	CostRow11: 
	NamePositionRow12: 
	ComputationRow12: 
	CostRow12: 
	NamePositionRow13: 
	ComputationRow13: 
	CostRow13: 
	NamePositionRow14: 
	ComputationRow14: 
	CostRow14: 
	NamePositionRow15: 
	ComputationRow15: 
	CostRow15: 
	NamePositionRow16: 
	ComputationRow16: 
	CostRow16: 
	NamePositionRow17: 
	ComputationRow17: 
	CostRow17: 
	CostTOTAL FRINGE: 11131.32
	FRINGE NARRATIVE: Total Fringe Benefits of 28% includes: Group Health/Dental/ Life 15.9%, 401K Match 2.0%, Retirement 1.6%, FICA/Workers Comp/Unemployment 8.3%, Other .2%
	Purpose of TravelRow1: 
	LocationRow1: 
	ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_3: 
	CostRow1_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow2: 
	LocationRow2: 
	ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_3: 
	CostRow2_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow3: 
	LocationRow3: 
	ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_3: 
	CostRow3_3: 
	CostTOTAL TRAVEL: 0
	TRAVEL NARATIVE: 
	Supply ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_4: 
	CostRow1_4: 
	Supply ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_4: 
	CostRow2_4: 
	Supply ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_4: 
	CostRow3_4: 
	Supply ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_3: 
	CostRow4_3: 
	Supply ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_3: 
	CostRow5_3: 
	Supply ItemRow6: 
	ComputationRow6_3: 
	CostRow6_3: 
	CostTOTAL SUPPLIES: 0
	SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 
	ItemRow1_2: Indirect Costs
	ComputationRow1_5: $39,754.73*.2895
	CostRow1_5: 14731.51
	ItemRow2_2: 
	ComputationRow2_5: 
	CostRow2_5: 
	ItemRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_5: 
	CostRow3_5: 
	ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_4: 
	CostRow4_4: 
	ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_4: 
	CostRow5_4: 
	CostTotalOTHER: 14731.51
	OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: Rosecrance has a Federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement. Current overhead rate is 28.95%


